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Growing by Adapting 
the Flavors of the World

The world is global, buT iTs TasTes are local. People adapt 
foreign foods but change them to their tastes. This is natural. Taste 
preference along with those of aroma, texture, and presentation evolved 
over hundreds of years, influenced mainly by the kinds of plant and animal 
food that grow in their geography. Local preferences are hard to change.

This presents challenges and opportunities for those serving food in 
many countries. They should understand and satisfy the local tastes. If 
they do, they would have new markets. Their array of cuisines and flavors 
would also expand, giving them even more chances to serve a wider 
variety of food to other peoples in other places.

For Jollibee Foods Corporation, this is one of the meanings of “growth”.
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Chairman’s Message

There are eVeNTs ThaT are so extraordinary that 
we humans cannot believe they are happening when 
they happen in our time. In 2008, the world began 
to experience an economic downturn that was so 
severe that it has been described as the worst since 
The Great Depression. Practically no one predicted 
this would happen even months earlier.

We saw giant financial institutions around the 
world falter, suffering losses of incredible magnitude. 
Some fell and many others would have fallen were 
it not for government bail outs. Businesses big and 
small reported huge drop in profits. The losses in the 
value of assets around the world are now measured 
in trillions of US dollars.

Our country had been adversely affected but 
fortunately, not in the same magnitude as many 
others. The Philippine stock market lost 48% of its 
value in 2008 after experiencing a 21% appreciation in 
the previous year. The peso also lost 13% of its value 
relative to the US dollar based on year-end exchange 
rates. However, our gross domestic product still grew 
although at a slower rate, from 7.3% in 2007 to 4.6% 
in 2008. The total remittances for the entire year from 
our overseas workers also happily did not decline but 
continued to grow at about 14%.

Meanwhile, interest rates rose from 3.4% to 
5.4% based on the average 91-day Treasury Bills. 
Energy cost as indicated by the price of crude oil 
went up by 35% from an average of US$ 69/barrel 
to US 93/barrel. Most impactful to the consumers 

was the increase in the cost of living driven by a dramatic rise in food 
commodity prices. Inflation rate went up from 2.8% in 2007 to 9.3% in 
2008 with food inflation surging from 3.2% in 2007 to 13.5% in 2008 
with a peak hitting 18.6% in October, 2008.

The dramatic rise in the cost of food raw materials affected Jollibee 
Foods Corporation directly. Our profit margins declined. Even in the face 
of fast rising costs, we decided to adjust our selling prices to consumers 
only gradually. Over the years, we learned that this is the effective way of 
balancing strong consumer demand and profits; between stable growth 
and customer loyalty and the financial health of the business.

In this extraordinarily difficult economic environment and with our 
chosen response to it, our business performed strongly. For the entire 
year, JFC’s System Wide Sales, a measure of all sales to consumers both 
from company-owned and franchised stores, grew by 12.8% driven 
by healthy same store sales growth, continued expansion of our store 
network and acquisition of a new business.

Our system wide sales in the Philippines increased by 10.8% 
while sales grew even stronger in foreign operations. Abroad, our 
sales grew by 28.4%. This included the effect of our acquisition of 
Hongzhuangyuan restaurant chain in Beijing in October, 2008. Excluding 
the effect of this acquisition, our sales from foreign operations grew 
by 23.1% driven mainly by Yonghe King in the People’s Republic of 
China and Jollibee in the United States. Our foreign operations already 
accounted for 13.1% of our system wide sales in 2008 compared with 
11.5% in 2007 and 3.0% five years ago. 

While sales were strong, our profit margins suffered from the surge 
in the prices of raw materials and other costs of doing business. Our gross 
profit margin decreased from 20.9% of revenues in 2007 to 18.5% in 2008. 
Operating profit margin also declined from 7.9% to 7.1% and net income 
margin from 6.2% to 5.3%. As a result, JFC generated a net operating 

To My Fellow Shareholders,
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Chairman’s Message income that was only 2.0% higher than in 2007. It 
made a net income of P2.3 billion, 2.8% lower than 
2007. These are modest numbers but they represent a 
very strong performance in a world in crisis. 

JFC was able to achieve a healthy Return On 
Equity of 17.3%. It generated 4.5 billion pesos in 
cash from operations, 4.7% higher than in 2007.  
Our cash dividend also improved.  We declared 
84 centavos per share in cash dividends in 2008, 
representing a 5.0% increase over the cash dividends 
declared in 2007.  

While our profit in 2008 was slightly lower 
compared to the previous year, the quarterly trend 
inspired confidence. After suffering a 15% profit decline 
in the first half of the year, our net income rose by 4.6% 
in the third quarter and by 20.2% in the fourth quarter. 

The investment community recognized that 
while our total year profit numbers were modest, 
the business performed stronger than expected. In 
2008, while the Philippine stock market lost 48% of 
its value, JFC stock price declined at less than half 
that rate at -20%, making JFC one of the best stock 
performers in the country in 2008.  

Despite the difficult economic environment, 
we believe that there are still enormous 
opportunities for our business to grow in the 
medium and long term future, here in our country 
and outside of our country.  We believe that there 
are so much unmet needs whenever consumers eat 
outside of their homes, both in the emerging and 

developed markets. We believe that we can serve better tasting, 
better quality food at more affordable prices than what are 
available out there today. Because of these beliefs, we continued 
to invest for the long term, even in the worst of times

In 2008, as the worldwide economic crisis raged JFC made 
its biggest investments in its 30 year history. We invested a total 
of 4.2 billion pesos, of which 2.9 billion were spent for capital 
expenditures and 1.3 billion were used for the acquisition of a new 
business in the People’s Republic of China.  

We opened 186 new stores worldwide in 2008, more than what 
we opened in the previous year and the highest number of new 
store openings in our history. Of significance, 41% or 76 of the 186 
new stores opened were outside the Philippines specifically, 45 in 
the People’s Republic of China practically all Yonghe King’s, 21  in the 
United States and 10 in other countries,  These numbers represent a 
breakthrough, a mark that our foreign businesses were beginning to 
contribute a major share in growing our total business. 

In the Philippines, we opened a total of 110 stores, of which 41 
were Jollibee’s, 25 Chowking’s, 27 Red Ribbon’s, 7 Greenwich’s,  3 
Delifrance’s and 7 Manong Pepe’s. The total number of 110 new store 
openings in 2008 in the Philippines was comparable to previous years’.

In a time of great uncertainty, we likewise invested resources 
in improving our stores. We spent half a billion pesos renovating 
132 stores in the Philippines and abroad.

To support the expansion of our businesses, we invested 
heavily in our commissary facilities.  In 2008, among others our 
Chowking business completed a 270-million peso modernization 
program that expanded and renovated its noodle making facilities, 
increased automation, and integrated the manufacturing processes 
between its two commissaries in Metro Manila.

Bandar Seri Bigawan, bruneiQuezon City, Philippines Quezon City, PhilippinesQuezon City, PhilippinesQuezon City, Philippines Jakarta, indonesia

“Our profit growth 
numbers are modest 
but they represent 
a very strong 
performance in a 
world in crisis.”
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As importantly, we acquired new businesses 
and shares in new businesses. We acquired 
Hongzhuangyuan, a restaurant chain with congee 
at its core products with 38 stores located mostly 
in Beijing in the People’s Republic of China. We also 
signed a joint venture agreement for a 70% share 
in Lao Dong, a restaurant chain in Taiwan. We also 
bought shares in Chow Fun Holdings, a restaurant 
chain in the United States serving Asian Cuisine. 

To finance our investments and to ensure the 
availability of funding for future projects in a world 
suffering from a very serious financial crisis, we 
borrowed 2.3 billion pesos from several financial 
institutions in September, 2008. The loan, designed 
for our expansion in China is denominated in 
Renminbi, the first of its kind in the Philippines.  

We ended the year with a cash of 6.9 billion 
pesos, 1.3 billion pesos or 23% more than we had 
at the end of 2007.  Our total assets expanded by 
23.6% but our balance sheet ratios remained very 
healthy. Total Stockholders’ Equity still represented a 
very strong 52.1% of total assets compared to 57.6% 
a year ago. We even improved our liquidity. Our 
current assets as of end of 2008 represented 145.4% 
of current liabilities compared with 137.8% at the end 
of 2007. Very significantly, in the midst of huge losses 
in the value of financial assets around the world, your 
company’s financial assets remained totally intact 
with no losses or impairment despite the significant 
amount of cash JFC was holding.

But most importantly, we remained focus on our customers. More 
than on anything else, we spent time and resources in improving our 
products and services even while the economic growth in all countries 
where we do business slowed down.  We introduced products at low 
price points, very valuable and relevant offering to consumers in times 
of economic difficulties. We communicated these to our consumers 
through even more effective advertising campaigns and other 
marketing activities.

There is a famous Chinese wish, “May you live in interesting 
times!”  By this measure, the year 2008 holds an extraordinary 
distinction!  The crisis had caused huge difficulties for many people, 
governments and businesses, but it also taught valuable lessons. At the 
very least, the crisis has been compelling us to be more prudent, at the 
same time to become even stronger. The crisis has brought enormous 
challenges to our company and organization but it has opened up 
opportunities as well. Crises change the market environment and the 
ones who are adept to change will win. Jollibee Foods Corporation had 
gone through various economic crises from which it emerged stronger. 
This is what I believe in. We will emerge stronger and a winner from 
this crisis! A big part of my confidence is derived from the outstanding 
dedication of our employees.

We thank you our shareholders, suppliers, business partners and 
most of all my fellow employees for your continued strong support.

Let us continue to address the challenges and opportunities with 
deep resolve and with optimism!          

Tony Tan Caktiong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Beijing, china Quezon City, Philippines Quezon City, Philippines Yuan District, chinaCalifornia , u.s.a. Shanghai, china

“We will emerge 
stronger and a winner 
from this crisis!”
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30 Langhap 
Sarap Years and 
Still Growing

Jollibee marked its milestone 
year by affirming its leadership, 
displaying resiliency amid 
the economic crunch while 
undertaking bolder steps to 
endear itself more to Filipino 

families across the archipelago.
Undaunted by competition and external 

challenges, Jollibee registered total systemwide 
sales of P32.4 billion in 2008, higher by 13 percent 
compared to 2007. Jollibee’s size and brand 
strength fuelled the growth of the country’s total 
eat-out-market by 7 percent. 

Jollibee’s 30th anniversary became the major 
backdrop for our strategic PR campaigns. A grand 
raffle promo “Isang Pasasalamat, Bida ang Lahat” 
was launched to thank all our loyal customers who 
have supported Jollibee through the years. 

2008 also saw the birth of Jollitown, the first 
children’s TV show in the country produced by a 
brand. It achieved a high viewership rating of 16% 
over the first season, eclipsing the counterpart 
program of other stations. With Jollitown, Jollibee 
was recognized as a responsible partner of parents 
in values formation among the youth—receiving a 
special citation in the 2008 Araw Values Awards.

New and exciting projects for teens, young 
working adults and families were introduced. 
Jollibee opened the year with the 39ers meal 
offering followed by year-round calendar coupons, 

resulting in double digit growth in our 1st quarter rolling base. We 
launched a campaign that strengthened Chickenjoy’s leadership 
and taste superiority while highlighting brand values of family 
togetherness and bonding. This further widened our lead from our 
competitors in terms of imagery and operational shares. We held 
our ground amid the burger wars with campaigns for Yum, Champ 
and our double-patty burgers, and launched season-specific 
products such as tuna pie for Lent, La Paz Batchoy during rainy 
months and Macapuno de Leche ice craze for summer. Our patrons 
were given new reasons to visit our stores with the new Hotdog 
toppings, Jolly Cheezy and Overload fries and the Black Forest 
sundae. Lastly, we strengthened our breakfast offerings with our 
re-launched Chicken Tocino and the Crispy Bangus.

Jollibee’s success story was also pilloried prominently 
in international media through the CNBC and BBC exclusive 
interviews with Mr. Ernesto Tanmantiong and Mr. Tony Tan 
Caktiong. These won for the brand the Award of Excellence in the 
Philippine Gold Quill Awards and the Award of Merit in the Anvil 
Awards for International Communications. 

Capping its 30th anniversary celebration, Jollibee launched 
the grandest MaAga ang Pasko. Grade school students in 25 
schools volunteered as Jolly Toy Scouts. With their help, over 
170,000 toys and books were gathered this year, the biggest 
collection ever in MaAga’s 14-year history.

In more ways than one, Jollibee continued to aspire for 
growth as a leader and trailblazer in the industry and a solid 
partner in molding the country’s youth. This is the same level of 
commitment that will propel us in the next 30 years and beyond.  
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The Jollibee product that started it all - Jollibee’s Yumburger made different variations 
to the original over the years. But one thing is consistent since its inception more than 
30 years ago—it’s “langhap-sarap” goodness. Whether it’s the Champ, the Cheezy 
Bacon Mushroom, the Amazing Aloha, the Yum w/ TLC, the Yum w/ Cheese or the 
original Yum, customers always attest that Jollibee’s hamburgers are really great-
tasting and truly Pinoy!

Yumburger
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Spicy food abounds cultures with strong Malay influences and 
ties. Jollibee Brunei’s Nasi Lemak is a combination of Chickenjoy, 
small-diced anchovies (ikan bilis), stir-fried vegetables, hard-
boiled egg, and rice. Chickenjoy shows us its versatility as it is 
paired with other nation’s ingredients… a truly Filipino trait known 
the world-over.

Brunei’s Nasi Lemak
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Amid the global economic crunch 
that sent various businesses 
and many international financial 
institutions struggling to stay 
afloat, Jollibee continued to 
conquer new markets outside the 

Philippines enroute to its ultimate goal of becoming 
a global brand.

In 2008, Jollibee’s total international store 
network grew to 47, as it firmly established its 
presence in Vietnam, Brunei, United States, 
Hongkong, and Jeddah KSA.

In the United States, total stores reached 
23 as Jollibee continued to cater to Filipino 
communities craving for the taste of home. It 
further boosted its presence in the West Coast 
with the opening of three stores in Los Angeles, 
California—Puente Malls Hills in the City of 
Industry, Southbay Pavilion in Carson City and 
Chino Town Spectrum in Chino City.

Jollibee US is also intent on its efforts of 
encroaching to the Hispanic market—a significant 
minority race in the US - with the opening of its 
second store at the Panorama Mall in Panorama 
City where 90% of the clientele are Hispanics. To 
make the menu constantly enticing for customers, 
new and exciting products were also cooked up 
including the iced coffee in vanilla bean latte and 
toffee bean variants, longanisa meal, cheesy fries 
and Mexican rice. 

Meanwhile, Jollibee Vietnam took bolder steps to make the 
brand more endearing to Vietnamese families. Its marketing team 
launched aggressive local store marketing activities all year round 
to induce immediate trial and repeat purchase of Jollibee’s langhap 
sarap products.

The very first creative agency pitch participated in by four 
reputable agencies in Vietnam was also held. The winning creative 
agency, Bates 141, was tasked to mount a thematic campaign 
that will kick off in 2009 to help establish Jollibee as a credible, 
international fastfood chain that is ready to compete head on with 
other local players. This will be complemented by a strategic PR 
campaign by Ogilvy Public Relations Worldwide. 

With the opening of three more stores in Vietnam—Cao 
Thang, Binh Tan and Coop Mart Bien Hoan—total store network 
increased to 10 during the year. 

Jollibee Brunei focused its efforts on further strengthening 
its number 1 position in the Western QSR category. Bolstered by 
the effective implementation of merchandising promotions and 
product launches, it achieved a sales growth of 26 percent from 
2007.  It also added two stores in its roster with the opening of new 
outlets in Giant Mall and the Brunei International Airport.

Lastly, Jollibee established its first store in Saudi Arabia 
in June. Located at the Jeddah International Market, the store 
was welcomed by many Filipinos who longed for their favorite 
Jollibee treats. Interestingly, a good number of locals also tried our 
products and became our frequent customers.

With the consolidated gains of our international stores, we 
are inspired to go forth with renewed optimism and scale greater 
heights in our quest to make Jollibee as successful in other parts of 
the world.

Covering More 
Grounds Abroad
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2008 became a testament to the 
resiliency of Chowking’s business 
as the company achieved another 
record high in sales despite 
visible signs of a slowdown in the 
domestic economy. 

Chowking posted systemwide sales of P10.8 
billion, eclipsing its end-2007 performance by 6.3% 
or P635 million. 

As of December 31, 2008, Chowking had 
387 stores in the country, which accounted for 
a quarter of its parent company’s total store 
network. Despite the slower momentum of the 
country’s economic growth, Chowking added 25 
stores to its network in 2008. 

Chowking also successfully rolled out 
marketing and product launches in 2008, which 
continued to capture the taste buds and excite 
customers. Three breached the 100% mark in terms 
of sales increase from the previous year’s level: 

•  Chaofan, which was part of the “Sarap Starts 
at P39” campaign, contributed 15% to total 
sales, as it recorded a 101% increase from 
2007 levels;

•  The debut of the new Hong Kong Style Congee 
– positioned as a more flavorful congee with 
more ingredients – registered at 157% increase 
in sales from the previous year and accounted 
for 5% of total sales in 2008; and

•  The New Lauriat (Breaded Porkchop Lauriat and Fish Fillet 
Lauriat), which was offered as fully satisfying and delicious 
meals for only P99, posted a 40% increase in sales from 
2007 and made up 21% of total sales. More importantly, the 
introduction of the P99 lauriat did not have an adverse impact 
on the sales of customers’ all-time favorite Chicken Lauriat, 
which continued to contribute 8.3% to total sales.
2008 was also a milestone year for Chowking as the company 

completed its P270-million (USD 5.6-million) modernization 
program, setting the stage for the company’s future growth. Called 
“Project DMSSM” for “Designed, Modernized and Streamlined 
Supply Chain and Manufacturing,” the two-year modernization 
program that started in 2006 involves the expansion and 
renovation of Chowking’s Noodle Building, increased automation 
and the improved integration of food manufacturing processes in 
its two commissaries located in Muntinlupa City. 

Chowking has also embarked on a full-scale intensification of 
Hazard Analysis of Critical Control Points (HACCP) program that 
guarantees food safety and quality standards.  This ensures that 
customers benefit from best food, service and cleanliness (FSC) 
standards of Chowking.

This and other milestones in 2008 reaffirmed Chowking’s 
brand reputation as a formidable leader in the quick service 
restaurant business and strengthened its commitment and 
determination to improve cost efficiencies, lift product quality and 
safety standards, and ensure production capacity to meet present 
and future demands.

Expanding 
Horizons
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Chowking Yangchow
Chowking as the leading brand in Oriental cuisine in the Philippines always rolls out 
new products that satisfy the palettes of its discerning customers. Chowking’s own 
Yangchow Fried Rice with its serving of bits of chorizo, premium pork asado, beaten 
egg, fresh and crispy vegetables, topped with sautéed shrimp, makes it an in-demand 
product. Chowking’s flavorsome and tasty Yangchow Fried Rice will surely make you 
come back for more.
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Dubai is one of the fastest growing regions in the United Arab Emirates. True 
to the vision of Chowking, we’ve made our own version of the Prawn Haka 
Noodles to satisfy the oriental taste buds of its growing eclectic communities. 
Our Haka Noodles is cooked with prawns and vegetables that infuse both 
oriental and Arabic flavors in one.

Dubai’s Prawn Haka Noodles

Jo
lli

be
e 

Fo
od

s 
Co

rp
or

ati
on

12



Going Strong, 
Going Places

Dubai’s Prawn Haka Noodles

Chowking’s international 
operations contributed P1.3 
billion to the company’s 
overall sales even as the global 
economic tailspin continued to 
grip markets.

Chowking operates a network of 31 stores 
abroad—with a strong presence in the United 
States, United Arab Emirates (UAE), and Indonesia.

In 2008, Chowking broadened its global reach 
as it opened new franchise stores in Las Vegas, 
Nevada in the US (bringing the total to 15) and its 
11th store in the United Arab Emirates, in addition 
to having five stores in Indonesia.  

With stronger presence in strategic locations, 
Chowking’s international operations continued to 
register remarkable sales performance in 2008.

Chowking UAE posted the highest growth in 
annual sales among its international operations 

with a 49% increase from 2007 levels. Sales of Chowking USA rose 
4% from year-ago levels despite the prolonged economic recession 
in the United States. Chowking Indonesia registered nearly flat 
growth as the company focused on building the brand by offering 
more specialty products. In 2008, it introduced the Bento Meals 
to the Indonesian market, which are a combination of chicken, 
dimsum, vegetable and rice meals. Sales of Halo-Halo, Chicken 
CharSiu and Ayam Supreme (roasted chicken) also propped up 
Chowking Indonesia’s bottom line.

Even as Chowking expects the global economic recovery 
to move at a slower pace, it will continue to spot and seize 
opportunities in some markets, particularly in the Middle East. In 
2009, Chowking plans to open more stores and continue to be on 
a global expansion mode to anticipate fresh opportunities when 
markets spring back to life and resume their growth path again.
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In 2008, Greenwich strengthened 
its position as the undisputed 
pizza brand by focusing on 
its three major growth pillars 
namely Core Product (pizza), 
Brand and Retail. 

Product superiority efforts started in March 
as Greenwich introduced its premium pizzas—the 
New Overloaded Pizza line which consists of the 
Greenwich Special Overload and the new Meat and 
Cheese Overload. With a campaign that strongly 
communicates “Heavy sa Toppings, Over sa Sarap” 
the promise of “overloaded” coupled with superior 
quality and taste was an instant hit for Greenwich. 
This success opened opportunities to further 
widen the range of flavors with the introduction 
of Greenwich Overloaded Gourmet Pizzas in 
September. These overwhelmingly successful pizza 
innovations resulted in Greenwich’s total pizza sales 
growing by 60%.

Mid-year, Greenwich covered the spectrum 
of palates by also releasing the Classic Italian 
line-up—composed of Pepperoni, Italian Sausage, 
Smoked Bacon, Salami and Mozzarella flavors—for 
those with more traditional pizza preferences. 

These product innovations were at the center 
of national campaigns that made the Greenwich 
brand resonate with the core pizza consumers. 

Greenwich achieved great impact by launching one of the 
country’s most bankable and popular young artists John Lloyd 
Cruz, along with the Greenwich Gang to promote the Overloaded 
Pizza Line. It instantly captured the hearts of its young-working-
adults market, especially that the Greenwich Gang is introduced in 
the Overloaded campaign, while the real-life “Ka-Toque” barkada 
chefs endorsed the Classic Italian Pizza line. These chefs provide 
the cool voice of expertise and lend credibility to its delicious 
claim.

The brand’s campaigns in 2008 caught the attention of its 
target market, the entertainment industry and press. Various 
media channels were tapped to efficiently communicate the brand 
news (Discover Friendship. Discover Delicious.) and the product 
news (Heavy sa Toppings, Over sa Sarap). Its Greenwich Pizza 
Friday’s sampling program has served over 4,000 pizza slices and 
reached over 2,800 young working adults in the country, more 
than double of what it achieved in the past years.

Aside from product and brand improvements, retail helped 
strengthen the consumer proposition of Greenwich in 2008. The 
brand has embraced the fast casual store concept in the same 
year with close to 30 stores in major business districts adapting 
the new look and service. Barkadas are now more excited to have 
a great time eating their favorite pizza and pasta in the new-look 
Greenwich stores. It brought dining experience to greater heights 
and instantly gave the renovated stores double digit sales growth. 

By the end of 2008, Greenwich had cemented its reputation 
as the Philippines’ favorite pizza chain as it continues to bring the 
joy of eating to its young working adult consumers. 

Philippines’ 
Best-Tasting 
Pizza
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The Filipino cultural trademark of closeness among “barkadas” or friends is best spent 
eating sumptuous snacks. Greenwich, the Philippines’ No.1 pizza, innovates exciting 
pizza blends and delicious pasta offerings that make friends’ get-togethers more special. 
The Greenwich Special Overload, an instant hit among the young working adults, boasts 
of a combination of 12 different flavorful toppings—premium meats to fresh vegetables 
and fine cheeses. Discover Greenwich and discover delicious today.

Philippines’ Best-Tasting Pizza
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Red Ribbon presents the Coffee Walnut Bavarian Cake. The first ever creation in its 
Premium Selection, this mouth-watering cake is a masterpiece. The combination of 
luscious flavors - exquisitely smooth coffee and Kahlua cream mixed in decadently 
moist chiffon, with sprinkles of walnuts, cocoa powder and dark chocolate bars 
will surely tickle anyone’s taste buds. You will definitely experience a truly divine 
harmony of flavors eating Red Ribbon’s Coffee Walnut Bavarian Cake. 

Coffee Walnut Bavarian Cake
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Growth Through 
Innovations

While 2008 was a difficult year 
as a result of the global financial 
crisis, Red Ribbon was able 
to end the year strongly with 
P3.016 billion in system wide 
sales, an 18% sales growth 

and 5% same store sales growth versus 2007.  In 
addition, the company also managed to expand 
its store network to over 200 stores nationwide by 
year-end.   

The outstanding results were driven by 
strengthening the fundamental factors that have 
allowed the brand to grow over its 30 years of 
existence.   The organization focused on delivering 
product superiority, improved store network 
and excellent service as key drivers of customer 
satisfaction.  

The company introduced innovative products 
during the year that truly reflected the brand’s 
focus on satisfying the customer’s needs for 
delicious products that make every gathering 
and celebrations beautiful.  Among the notable 
products Red Ribbon introduced were Dulce De 
Leche, Smores Chocolate Cake, Coffee Walnut 
Bavarian Cake,  Mango Cashew Roll & the Bangus 
ala Pobre meal.   True to its commitment to quality 

standards in taste, all these new  products rated highly in consumer 
tests conducted prior to launch.   

Red Ribbon also continued its thrust to improve its store 
network as it opened  a total  of  27 new stores  and renovated 13 
stores in 2008 which now sport the brand’s new look with a more 
contemporary and warm ambience.  

The company also focused on improving its service levels in 
the stores to ensure that customers will truly have a delightful 
experience with every visit. Product availability was given key 
priority including proper display.  The store premises were 
kept clean at all times. And more importantly, customers were 
greeted with a smile and served on time.   Indeed, 2008 was a 
breakthrough year for Red Ribbon stores as performance in FSC – 
food, service & condition, the standard of operational execution, 
reached record-breaking status.   A total of 41 stores were awarded 
for delivering excellent FSC in 2008!  

As testament to its strong 2008 performance,  Red Ribbon 
bagged a total of 5 awards  – a) Outstanding Filipino Franchise 
of the Year in the 2008 Franchise Excellence Awards;  b) Most 
Promising Franchise; c) Best in Franchising Support; & d) Best 
Local Franchise all from the 2008 Entrepreneur Franchise Awards 
and finally e) The Outstanding Filipino Retailer of the Year Award 
(Large Scale Food Category) in the 11th Annual Outstanding Filipino 
Retailers & Shopping Center of the Year Award  - a truly sweet 
ending to the challenging  year that was.
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2008 marked the year when 
RED RIBBON BAKESHOP USA 
completed the 1st phase of its 
aggressive expansion program.  
NINE new locations were added 
to the network:  SAN FRANCISCO, 

PANORAMA MALL, NATIONAL CITY SEAFOOD CITY, 
SOUTHBAY PAVILION (Multibrand), PUENTE HILLS 
MALL, ARIZONA, CHINO, CERRITOS SEAFOOD CITY, 
and MILPITAS.  What made this more remarkable 
was that SIX of these are situated in mainstream 
American malls—Panorama Mall in Panorama City, 
South Bay Pavilion in Carson, Puente Hills Mall in 
City of Industry, Arizona Mills in Tempe, Chino Town 
Spectrum in Chino Hills, and Great Mall in Milpitas, 
CA.  This achievement is a testament to our brand’s 
excellent quality and premium image as it joins 
mainstream American malls’ roster of popular 
restaurants such as Olive Garden, Red Lobster, 
Black Angus, Outback, and many more.

2008 was also the year when we launched the 
new CO-BRAND and MULTIBRAND concepts to the 
public.  SAN FRANCISCO has both Jollibee and Red 
Ribbon sharing one retail area; PANORAMA MALL 

has Jollibee and Red Ribbon beside each other inside the mall; 
SOUTHBAY PAVILION is a MULTIBRAND Jollibee store with a RED 
RIBBON cake showcase and bread display; PUENTE HILLS MALL is  
a one-stop destination that features a common dining area for RED 
RIBBON, JOLLIBEE and CHOWKING customers; and GREAT MALL, 
Northern California’s biggest covered mall, has both Jollibee and 
Red Ribbon sharing a common dining area.

An all-new television campaign was launched in 2008 that 
features multi-racial talents in a variety of celebrations made more 
beautiful by Red Ribbon Bakeshop.

A line of 3” mini cakes from a renowned Chicago pie chain 
were tested in select locations.  Summer also saw the return of 
the popular Strawberry with Almonds cake.  By June, the line of 
short order meals was supplemented with a new addition:  Grilled 
Chicken Teriyaki with Rice.  Before the year ended, on-site baking 
was introduced at the new Great Mall store offering customers 
a line of fresh-off-the-oven croissants and cookies.  The bake-off 
area also doubled as an activity center where customers can view 
in-process icing and baking, further strengthening Red Ribbon’s 
reputation for high-quality premium products made fresh always.

The economic crisis that hit the United States in September 
eroded much of the gains realized from the first eight months 
of the year.  Nonetheless, the company ended the year with 6% 
increase in Net Sales vs. the previous year.

New Look, 
New Ideas
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The famous Philippine mangoes are synonymous with sweet-toothed Filipinos 
abroad. We all take pride in our wonderful mangoes known for its creamy texture, 
its golden yellow color, and the sweet taste it leaves in our palate. The Red Ribbon 
Bakeshop in the United States is the only bakeshop where you can find Filipino’s 
pride—ripe and handpicked Philippine mangoes that are blended into a light 
cream—an interplay of local flavors in a mango cake we all can be proud of!

U.S.A.’s Mango Cake
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Delifrance has reinvented the French gourmet sampler through the new 
Delifrance Tray Couture. This delectable sandwich and pasta combo takes 
Filipino taste buds on a culinary cruise—with garlic and parsley bread sticks, 
pumpkin soup, a dessert and choice of drink. True to its trendy French café 
tradition, Delifrance offers another delightful food experience.

Philippines’ Tray Couture
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Delightfully 
Different

2008 was a year of exciting 
products and breakthrough 
campaigns for Delifrance.

True to its trendy French 
café tradition, Delifrance 
introduced the Tray Couture Sets, 

a French gourmet sampler that delights the palate. 
Scrumptious appetizers, a Clubhouse sandwich, hot 
and tasty pasta, dessert, and choice of drink – the 
Tray Couture is guaranteed to excite the senses and 
satisfy the appetite, all at a very affordable price.

Delifrance has also elevated the usual 
sandwich experience through the launch of the 
French Dip Roast Beef Sandwich.  Made from only 
the finest USDA choice grade roast beef and freshly 
baked baguette slices, the French Dip Roast Beef 
Sandwich is savory goodness at its best.  Its rich 
smoky meat is tender and moist, while a sprinkling 
of caramelized onions gives it a delightfully sweet 
flair. To top it all off, the sandwich is served with a 
flavorful and steaming hot beef sauce dip.

The year also saw the first word-of-mouth 
marketing campaign of the brand, the Spiked 

After 5 Campaign. Harnessing the metro’s fascination for caffeine, 
Delifrance launched a liqueur-spiked coffee line, a series of playful 
beverages prepared with global sophistication for coffeeholics who 
appreciate a little naughty with their coffee. Through a massive 
Internet-led campaign, the brand gave away 4,000 cups of Spiked 
Coffee to a new, interested and up-and-coming market.

Come December, Delifrance ended the year in style, through 
its second online promotional campaign, the Delifrance My Secret 
Santa, heralded to be the biggest and most delightfully wholesome 
Kris Kringle celebration Manila has ever seen. Thousands of 
Filipinos visited the microsite to send out delicious samples of 
Choco Chip Almond Biscotti and Almond Star Cookies to their 
friends, for free. Widely acclaimed by international marketing blogs 
and local media, My Secret Santa was an ingenious way to create 
long lasting customer relations while eliciting huge trial of new 
products.

Expanding to NAIA 3, Shell North Luzon Tollway, and Philippine 
Heart Center, Delifrance ended the year with a network of 26 
stores.

Delifrance’s continuous commitment to serving deliciously 
fresh gourmet fare and creating compelling innovative marketing 
campaigns will surely delight its customers in the years to come.

Jo
lli

be
e 

Fo
od

s 
Co

rp
or

ati
on

21



Remaking the 
Brand 

2008 was a year of significant 
progress through re-invention 
and change. These were 
necessary for the brand to grow 
stronger and set the stage to 
accomplish its 5-year goal of  

500 Yonghe King stores.       
•  Brand – The brand had been re-engineered to 

be traditional yet modern, with burgundy red, 
grey and white as the core color, with a touch of 
China national flower, peony.  At the restaurant; 
the façade, the logo, the décor, the seating, 
the ordering counter, the menu board, the 
crew uniform, cutlery and packaging had been 
changed to match the new brand image.  All 
visuals were likewise changed.  There are now 53 
restaurants with this new image.

Most significant is the brand’s new website - 
http://www.yonghe.com.cn, which was launched 
in October 2008.  

• Store network – This year witnessed 41 new store 
opening, the highest opening in the history of 
Yonghe King, since its founding in 1994. These 
results were achieved in part, through an alliance 
with French hypermarket operator, Carrefour; 
positive brand recognition by landlords; and, the 
persistence and hard work of the development 
team. At the end of 2008, there were 141 
restaurants, spread over 21 cities.  

• Products :
–  To meet customer feedback on lack of variety, 

18 a la carte items were introduced; 3 variants 
of rice bowls, 5 variants of noodles, 2 congees, 
1 soup, 3 type of sides, 2 hot desserts and 2 
beverages. These expanded the menu to 41 
a la carte, 8 breakfast and 11 lunch/dinner 

meal combinations. These new products, created customer 
excitement and helped raised average check by 18.3% 

– Aside from being popular for its soya milk and youtiao, Yonghe 
King is also known now as a place for great tasting beef 
noodle. To build upon the success of Dawang beef noodle, 
two noodle extensions were introduced in January - the 
Dawang San Bao and Dawang Ban Jin Ban Rou. These were 
again successful launches, with each restaurant serving 113 
portions of beef noodles variety a day.

• Operations Excellence – Delivering great FSC consistently 
is the key fundamental in customer satisfaction and long 
term customer loyalty. With this focus in mind,  Yonghe King 
implemented 3 key initiatives:
–  Production area standardization and efficiency. The kitchen 

was sectioned to 8 areas; support/back, washing, soya, 
noodle, rice, steam, grill and fry area. This compact 80 square 
meter production area has the capacity and flexibility to 
handle more menus, and for consistently delivering hot tasty 
food quickly.     

–  Service enhancement. Split Function Service System (SFSS) 
was designed and introduced in July with the key objective of 
delivering friendly, efficient and accurate service. 

–  Crew Development Program. It took 6 months to design and 
develop this program.  We launched this program in early 
December, designed to match the production and service 
system; at the same time, tie to the Human Resource initiative 
in promoting career development and advancement. This will 
positively impact crew morale and retention, an important 
ingredient to support future growth. 
In retrospect, with all these changes, 2008 was an excellent 

year. Customers had positively recognized the change and had 
rewarded us with sales growth of 25.50% over 2007, driven mainly 
by comparable store sales of +17.20%. We look forward to 2009 
as another very challenging year. With our motto of ‘1 Team 1 
Dream’, we can ride it out through the financial crisis, successfully.
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Yonghe King is one of the largest Chinese fastfood chains in Mainland China. As part of the Jollibee 
Group, it continues to revolutionize the way food is being prepared and served to its thousands of 
customers. Yonghe King developed a healthier way of preparing Youtiao - a crispy and tasty pastry, 
served with refreshing soybean milk for breakfast.  Yonghe King has innovated this favorite local meal 
by preparing it alum-free, while retaining its distinct flavor and texture for a healthier and chemical-
free option.  Yonghe King is at the forefront of helping create a healthier, stronger, and bigger nation.

China’s Youtiao
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Chun Shui Tang pioneered the Pearl Milk Tea in China and Taiwan—a combination of tapioca pearls 
swimming in milk tea slush.  Its creamy goodness, along with the rich and large black tapioca pearl 
balls that are oh-so chewy, goes with the healthy attributes from drinking tea.  You’ll definitely want 
more than just a serving for those hot summers.

China’s Pearl Milk Tea
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Strengthening  
the Brand

2008 had been a fruitful year 
for C.S.Tea. We repositioned our 
brand, opened 2 new stores in 
Shanghai, and ended the year 
with a stronger team and a 
clearer vision of the future.

After a challenging 2007, we felt the need to 
re-evaluate our positioning and strategic direction. 
Market research was done to study our major 
competitors and identify our brand’s unique 
selling proposition (USP). We identified tea culture 
and great tasting tea to be our brand equity and 
created a new store design and new visual identity 
to support the message. 

In June, we opened our first new store on Tian 
Shan road in an up and coming trade area on the west 
end of Shanghai. Customers were welcomed by our 
new store design and improved menu. Taiwanese 
customers in the area had been looking forward to 
the opening of our new store since April.  This new 
store generated a record breaking 14,000RMB of sales 
in one day during the opening week. 

In November, we opened our second store in 
the Super Brand mall on the east end of Shanghai. 

Not only is Super Brand one of Shanghai’s most popular malls but 
it was and remains to be a difficult trade area to enter. Only brands 
of elite status or great future potential that can elevate the mall’s 
image are rewarded a location. C.S.Tea’s entry into Super Brand mall 
marked another milestone in our brand’s history.  

Finally, both store openings continue to be supported by 
our “100% Tea Loving” design campaign. We found ways to 
communicate our love for tea and tea heritage through multiple 
contact points with our customers. All store promotions were 
geared towards promoting tea culture. In September, we tied 
up with a lifestyle newspaper, City Herald, to hold a reader’s 
gathering at the store. We offered readers our best selling 
drinks and food and taught them how to make ice blended tea. 
In December, we brought back Ginger Milk Tea, a favorite from 
previous winter years, and it immediately rose to the top of our 
product mix. 

With the economic and financial crisis upon us, it will be a 
challenging 2009 for all brands. We believe that brands that can 
maintain their unique identity and consistently deliver great value 
and memorable experiences to their customers will weather the 
storm. In addition, the New Year brings opportunity to continue 
re-examining the business, improve cost and become more 
efficient. We believe that the foundations built in this year will 
enable C.S.Tea to come out even stronger in 2009. 
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Manong Pepe’s
in 2008

Manong Pepe’s had opened 
7 new stores in 2008 from 
a base of 2 prototype test 
stores. The 9 stores are in 
varied sites that represent 
most of the likely viable 

trading areas for the concept.
Manong Pepe’s claims a market niche 

that lies in between the QSRs and Karinderias 
populated by the  broad C and D customers. 
It aims to be the popular eating place for the 
“sulit meal seekers”, those who look for filling 
and delicious foods that fit their limited budget 
everyday.

Manong Pepe’s concept stands on the platform of low 
price-good value-delicious pinoy foods. The price range of P30 
merienda and P50 meal resonates well with C & D customers. 
The prices are much lower than QSRs and slightly higher than 
karinderias but the better value clearly stands up well in both. 
The customers’ delightful dining experience easily matches that 
of the QSRs’ for the better ambiance and cleanliness. The menu 
is centered on favorite pinoy foods thus attracting customers 
to visit the place more than once a week. Manong Pepe’s has 
become known for its bilobilo and puto for merienda and laing 
and adobo for lunch and dinner.

Manong Pepe’s had started to break ground in a potentially 
huge market. The timing is also right in the unfolding economic 
downtrend.
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Carinderias are where Filipinos eat their favorite local dishes at very affordable prices.  Manong 
Pepe’s is JFC’s own carinderia business:  affordable Pinoy goodness in local dish served in the clean 
and sanitized setting the Jollibee way.  Filipinos from all walks of life queue to get their tasty serving 
of Filipino food like this ginataang bilo-bilo, a sweet snack or dessert made with chunks of ripe saba 
bananas, sweet potatoes, tapioca balls, taro, jackfruit and sticky rice balls cooked in sweetened 
coconut milk. 

Philippines’Ginataang Bilo-bilo
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The seasons in China are often parlayed into their cuisines. Hongzhuangyuan’s Zhuang Yuan 
Master congee, a warm porridge celebrates this tradition. The yellow of summer, maroon of 
autumn and white of winter are blended into the congee and come in a splendid color that 
mirrors the beauty of nature. The congee combines fresh seafood, savory dried fruits, and some 
special medicinal ingredients for a unique culinary experience. Zhuang Yuan Master congee will 
leave anyone wanting for more.

China’s Zhuang Yuan Master Congee
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Another 
Potential Big 
Player in China

Hongzhuangyuan is the newest 
member in the fast growing 
JFC Group of Companies.  The 
business, which originated in 
Beijing was started in 1996 by 
Mr. Gao Chunyu and Ms. Hu 

Shujuan, both directors and key officers of the 
business.  

The acquisition of Hongzhuangyuan in 2008 
is in line with the Jollibee Group’s strategy to 
build its business abroad and expand its presence 
in China.  It went through a long process of due 
diligence before its completion.  Jollibee Foods 
Corporation (JFC) through Jollibee Worldwide 
PTE. LTD. (“JWPL) entered into an agreement to 
acquire Hongzhuangyuan on September 20, 2007.  
On August 23, 2008, the Company signed a final 
agreement where JOLLIBEE WORLDWIDE PTE. LTD 
(“JWPL”), would acquire 100% of Hongzhuangyuan 
for RMB 379 million (US$ 55.5 million; P2.5 Billion).  
The acquisition was completed on October 1, 

2008.  The financial due diligence was conducted for JFC by Price 
Waterhouse Coopers, while the legal due diligence was performed 
by Jun He Law Firm, both reputable international firms with 
significant practices in Beijing.   

Hongzhuangyuan is a brand that has a unique concept. It 
serves a variety of local Chinese food centered around congee in 
full service restaurants located mostly in residential areas.  The 
product offerings at their price points provide superior value, thus 
attracting a high number of customers at different parts of the day. 

As of December 31, 2008, Hongzhuangyuan had a total of 38 
restaurants of which 31 are company owned, located in Beijing 
while 7 franchised stores are situated in other cities in the PRC.  It 
had added 5 company owned stores since the time of the initial 
disclosure in September 2007.  JFC believes that Hongzhuangyuan 
will be a strong addition to it’s presence in China, in terms of 
market segment and geographical coverage.

In 2009, Hongzhuangyuan will focus on the renovation of its 
stores and making improvements in its store design and layout.  It 
will also introduce new products and improve existing products to 
enhance its product offering to its customers.

Jo
lli

be
e 

Fo
od

s 
Co

rp
or

ati
on

29



In 2008, Jollibee Foundation 
began major initiatives 
harnessing the strengths of its 
parent company, Jollibee Foods 
Corporation (JFC), and those 
of its partners, for community 

development.
As a food company, we continued our 

advocacy to address hunger through our in-school 
feeding program, Busog, Lusog, Talino (BLT). In 
2008, the program reached more than 1,800 
Grades 1 and 2 pupils in 54 schools nationwide. We 
also mobilized the youthful employee volunteer 
force within JFC to help with the tasks of feeding 
the undernourished pupils as well as the training 
of their parents on the preparation of safe and 
nutritious foods. With parents applying their 
learnings at home, and the supplemental feeding 
we provided in schools, these pupils can gain the 
stamina to attend school daily and participate in 
classroom learning.

Our work in higher education to help produce 
competent manpower gained further impetus with 
the initiation of our Project Access, Curriculum 
and Employability (ACE) in Hotel and Restaurant 
Management (HRM) education. The program not 
only provided deserving youth with scholarship 
support to gain an academic degree, but also 
in-store training to develop their skills and be 
ready for immediate job placement in JFC or 
other companies upon graduation. Combining our 
Project ACE scholars from four universities with 

our technical skills training scholars in Don Bosco, more than two 
hundred young people and their families can enjoy a brighter 
future with their education.

In the area of community development, we initiated the 
Bridging Farmers to the JFC Supply Chain program together with 
two partner institutions, Catholic Relief Services and National 
Livelihood Development Corporation in 2008. The program 
opened to small farmers the opportunity to participate in JFC’s 
supply chain. The technical assistance provided to them helped 
improve their productivity and organized them as producers 
who understood how the market operates. Deliveries of onion, 
rice and bell pepper from farmers’ groups to JFC are expected 
to commence in 2009, assuring them stable market and better 
income.

We also continued our partnership with the AIM-Team Energy 
Center for Bridging Societal Divides in promoting citizen-responsive 
governance across the country. Two years since its inception, we 
are witnessing the emergence of local leaders in Nueva Vizcaya 
committed to serve the community with stakeholder participation. 
Many local leaders in Mindanao availed of the training program in 
2008 and more communities can benefit from this as we expand to 
new sites in 2009. The Foundation also extended relief assistance 
to families affected by strong typhoons that visited the country the 
past year. 

We have realized that doing Corporate Social Responsibility 
or CSR is a constant challenge of implementing programs that 
will be sustainable. Our view is that if we build into the program 
design the relevant strengths of JFC, including those of its network 
of resource holders, then program sustainability will have a fairly 
good chance. The Foundation will continue to harness these 
strengths to effect a positive change in the lives of many of the 
underprivileged. 

Harnessing 
Strengths
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Studies show an alarming rate of school dropouts among kids between the ages of 6-12 are due to hunger and malnutrition. In 
an effort to help reverse this trend, Jollibee Foundation launched the Busog, Lusog, Talino (BLT) Program to provide daily lunch to 
undernourished Grades 1 and 2 students in public schools. The Foundation partners with our store volunteers, schools, parents 
and local institutions to implement, expand and sustain the program.

In school year 2008-2009, BLT was implemented in over 50 public elementary schools. The Foundation’s mission is to jollify 
communities through programs in education, livelihood, leadership development and disaster relief.

Jollibee Foundation’s B-L-T Program
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VP - Jollibee Foundation

gisela TioNgsoN -  Velasco
Managing Director - Jollibee 
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Selected Financial Data

(in P’000, except Number of Stores, Personnel, Ratios, Per Share Data and Outstanding Shares)   
   

FOR THE YEAR 2008  2007  2006  

Consolidated Systemwide Sales  58,162,821  51,550,858 45,206,332    
Gross Revenues  43,891,559  38,693,662  33,911,218   
Net Income  2,321,817  2,388,358  2,160,158   
Net Income (Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent) 2,319,088  2,386,722  2,156,618     
Payroll and Benefits 7,636,054  6,749,023  5,793,465    
Personnel  39,599  32,918  32,439   
Number of Stores   
          Jollibee* 700  652  592 
          Chowking* 418  402  375 
          Greenwich 231  245  239 
          Red Ribbon* 239  212  178 
          Yonghe King  141  99  105 
          Delifrance 26  26  37 
          Chun Shui Tang 2  1  1 
          Manong Pepe’s 9 2 
          Hongzhuangyuan  38
*  Domestic and International   
   
AT YEAR-END   
   
Total Assets  27,125,701  21,945,002  19,268,354   
Property, Plant and Equipment 8,274,919  7,491,045  7,056,773     
Stockholders’ Equity  14,139,831  12,648,337  10,961,791    
Current Ratio  1.45  1.38  1.31    
Debt-to-Equity Ratio  0.48  0.42  0.43     
   
PER SHARE DATA   
   
Basic Earnings Per Share 2.27  2.36  2.16      
Diluted Earnings Per Share  2.25  2.34  2.15     
Cash Dividend  0.84  0.80  0.68     
Book Value  13.81  12.43  10.95     
   
SHARE INFORMATION   
   
Outstanding Shares (net of Treasury Shares)  1,023,558,148  1,017,447,029  1,001,448,298    
   

Jo
lli

be
e 

Fo
od

s 
Co

rp
or

ati
on

33



Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The management of Jollibee Foods Corporation is responsible for all information and representations contained in the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. The financial statements 
have been prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of management with an appropriate consideration to 
materiality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded 
against unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Company’s audit committee and to its external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation 
of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process and report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other employees who 
exercise significant roles in internal controls.

The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are approved and submitted to the stockholders of the Company.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and has expressed its opinion 
on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination, in its report to the Board of Directors and stockholders.

Signed under oath by the following:

 YSMAEL V. BAYSA  TONY TAN CAKTIONG MARILOU SIBAYAN
 Vice-President for Corporate Finance Chairman of the Board and Comptroller
 and Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer
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The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Jollibee Foods Corporation
10th Floor, Jollibee Plaza Building
No. 10 Emerald Avenue, Ortigas Centre
Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jollibee Foods Corporation and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated statements 
of income, consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.  This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and 
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
 
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Jollibee Foods Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and their financial 
performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ramon D. Dizon
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 46047
SEC Accreditation No. 0077-AR-1
Tax Identification No. 102-085-577
PTR No. 1566425, January 5, 2009, Makati City

April 28, 2009

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
 December 31
     2008   2007
ASSETS  
Current Assets  
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 31 and 32) P6,858,849,056  P5,575,943,093
Short-term investments (Notes 31 and 32) 20,002,018  –
Receivables - net (Notes 7, 31 and 32) 1,940,700,399  1,942,450,718
Inventories - net (Note 8) 2,727,464,412  1,629,428,021
Other current assets - net (Notes 9 and 15) 1,497,720,460  1,261,258,621
  Total Current Assets 13,044,736,345  10,409,080,453
Noncurrent Assets  
Investments in shares of stock (Note 11) 41,866,500  –
Investment properties - net (Note 12) 306,371,826  214,115,773
Property, plant and equipment - net (Note 13) 8,274,918,781  7,491,045,497
Goodwill (Notes 10 and 14) 3,186,353,082  1,601,606,272
Operating lease receivable (Note 30) 43,621,847  37,789,598
Deferred tax assets (Note 24) 760,124,418  874,166,872
Other noncurrent assets - net (Notes 15, 31 and 32) 1,467,707,707  1,317,197,084
  Total Noncurrent Assets 14,080,964,161  11,535,921,096
     P27,125,700,506  P21,945,001,549
  
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
Current Liabilities  
Trade payables and other current liabilities (Notes 16, 31 and 32) P8,828,966,051  P7,404,724,470
Income tax payable 82,483,163  83,725,085
Current portion of:   
 Provisions (Note 17) 17,039,685  25,394,090
 Long-term debt (Notes 18, 31 and 32) 37,769,129  40,549,919
  Total Current Liabilities 8,966,258,028  7,554,393,564
Noncurrent Liabilities  
Provisions - net of current portion (Note 17) 29,269,304  32,112,104
Long-term debt - net of current portion (Notes 18, 31 and 32) 2,484,389,105  102,858,308
Accrued benefit liability (Note 26) 400,526,978  443,613,066
Operating lease payable (Note 30) 1,033,055,572  1,028,047,054
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) 72,370,098  126,820,592
Other noncurrent liabilities –  8,819,817
  Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,019,611,057  1,742,270,941
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent (Note 31)  
Capital stock (Note 19) 1,040,005,488  1,034,139,179
Subscriptions receivable (17,177,884 ) (17,177,884 )
Additional paid-in capital (Notes 19 and 27) 2,245,675,482  2,086,941,086
Cumulative translation adjustments of subsidiaries 22,952,351  151,039,682
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial assets (Note 15) 19,880,054  30,895,367
Excess of the acquisition cost over the carrying value of minority interests (Note 10) (543,978,573 ) (543,978,573 )
Retained earnings (Note 19):  
 Appropriated 1,200,000,000  1,200,000,000
 Unappropriated 10,349,648,543  8,884,408,730
     14,317,005,461  12,826,267,587
Less cost of common stock held in treasury (Notes 19 and 27) 180,511,491  183,338,740
     14,136,493,970  12,642,928,847
Minority interests (Note 10) 3,337,451  5,408,197
  Total Stockholders’ Equity 14,139,831,421  12,648,337,044
     P27,125,700,506  P21,945,001,549

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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 Years Ended December 31
     2008  2007  2006

REVENUES     
Net sales   P41,374,272,795  P36,221,306,253  P31,939,209,596
Royalty, franchise fees and others
 (Notes 12, 20 and 30) 2,517,286,157  2,472,355,491  1,972,008,085
     43,891,558,952  38,693,661,744  33,911,217,681

COST OF SALES (Notes 12 and 21) 35,780,174,124  30,596,612,445  26,918,732,047

GROSS PROFIT  8,111,384,828  8,097,049,299  6,992,485,634

OTHER INCOME - Net (Notes 12, 31 and 32) 419,918,386  113,588,559  389,615,681

EXPENSES (Notes 12, 22 and 27) (5,423,621,683 ) (5,163,143,103 ) (4,579,738,446 )

FINANCE INCOME (CHARGES)    
Interest income (Note 23) 208,464,081  142,988,980  135,490,812
Interest expense (Note 23) (105,080,420 ) (55,469,288 ) (80,407,514 )

EXCESS OF FAIR VALUE OF NET ASSETS 
 OVER ACQUISITION COST OF A SUBSIDIARY (Note 10) –  –  68,415,573

EQUITY IN NET LOSS OF A JOINT VENTURE (Note 11) –  –  (22,907,585 )

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,211,065,192  3,135,014,447  2,902,954,155

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) 
 INCOME TAX (Notes 24 and 25)   
Current   829,656,114  853,376,333  609,362,773
Deferred  59,591,960  (106,719,536 ) 133,433,459
     889,248,074  746,656,797  742,796,232
NET INCOME P2,321,817,118  P2,388,357,650  P2,160,157,923

Attributable to:   
Equity holders of the Parent P2,319,087,864  P2,386,722,219  P2,156,618,463
Minority interests 2,729,254  1,635,431  3,539,460
     P2,321,817,118  P2,388,357,650  P2,160,157,923

Earnings Per Share for Net Income Attributable 
 to the Equity Holders of the Parent (Note 29)   
Basic    P2.268  P2.364  P2.161
Diluted   2.253  2.341  2.152

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

 

Consolidated Statements of Income
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                       Minority  Total  
                       Interests   Stockholders’
          Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent          (Note 10 ) Equity
             Excess of the     
           Unrealized   Acquisition                        Retained Earnings    Cost
         Cumulative   Gain (Loss) on  Cost over the                                 (Note 19)    of Common
       Additional   Translation  Available-for-  Carrying Value   Appropriated     Stock Held in
   Capital Stock   Subscriptions   Paid-in Capital   Adjustments   Sale Financial   of Minority  for Future     Treasury

   (Note 19 ) Receivable  (Notes 19 and 27 ) of  Subsidiaries  Assets  Interests (Note 10 ) Expansion  Unappropriated  (Notes 19 and 27 ) Total

Balances at January 1, 2008 P1,034,139,179  (P17,177,884 ) P2,086,941,086  P151,039,682  P30,895,367  (P543,978,573 ) P1,200,000,000  P8,884,408,730  (P183,338,740 ) P12,642,928,847  P5,408,197  P12,648,337,044

Net income for the year –  –  –  –  –  –  –  2,319,087,864  –  2,319,087,864  2,729,254  2,321,817,118

Translation adjustments 

 during the year –  –  –  (128,087,331 ) –  –  –  –  –  (128,087,331 ) –  (128,087,331 )

Change in fair value of 

 available-for-sale financial assets –  –  –  –  (11,015,313 ) –  –  –  –  (11,015,313 ) –  (11,015,313 )

Total income for the year –  –  –  (128,087,331 ) (11,015,313 ) –  –  2,319,087,864  –  2,179,985,220  2,729,254  2,182,714,474

Subscriptions and issuances of shares 5,866,309  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  5,866,309  –  5,866,309

Re-issuances of treasury shares for 

 stock purchase exercised –  –  73,080,096  –  –  –  –  –  2,827,249  75,907,345  –  75,907,345

Cost of stock options granted –  –  85,654,300  –  –  –  –  –  –  85,654,300  –  85,654,300

Cash dividends –  –  –  –  –  –  –  (853,848,051 ) –  (853,848,051 ) (4,800,000 ) (858,648,051 )

   5,866,309  –  158,734,396  –  –  –  –  (853,848,051 ) 2,827,249  (686,420,097 ) (4,800,000 ) (691,220,097 )

Balances at December 31, 2008 P1,040,005,488  (P17,177,884 ) P2,245,675,482  P22,952,351  P19,880,054  (P543,978,573 ) P1,200,000,000  P10,349,648,543  (P180,511,491 ) P14,136,493,970  P3,337,451  P14,139,831,421

Balances at January 1, 2007 P1,024,182,326  (P17,177,884 ) P1,817,488,852  P72,950,363  (P198,091 ) (P168,257,659 ) P1,200,000,000  P7,303,774,395  (P292,445,970 ) P10,940,316,332  P21,474,598  P10,961,790,930

Net income for the year –  –  –  –  –  –  –  2,386,722,219  –  2,386,722,219  1,635,431  2,388,357,650

Translation adjustments 

 during the year –  –  –  78,089,319  –  –  –  –  –  78,089,319  –  78,089,319

Change in fair value of 

 available-for-sale financial assets –  –  –  –  31,093,458  –  –  –  –  31,093,458  –  31,093,458

Total income for the year –  –  –  78,089,319  31,093,458  –  –  2,386,722,219  –  2,495,904,996  1,635,431  2,497,540,427

Subscriptions and 

 issuances of shares 9,956,853  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  9,956,853  –  9,956,853

Re-issuances of treasury shares for 

 stock purchase exercised –  –  188,949,443  –  –  –  –  –  109,107,230  298,056,673  –  298,056,673

Cost of stock options granted –  –  80,502,791  –  –  –  –  –  –  80,502,791  –  80,502,791

Cash dividends –  –  –  –  –  –  –  (806,087,884 ) –  (806,087,884 ) –  (806,087,884 )

Acquisition of minority 

 interest (Note 10) –  –  –  –  –  (375,720,914 ) –  –  –  (375,720,914 ) (17,701,832 ) (393,422,746 )

   9,956,853  –  269,452,234  –  –  (375,720,914 ) –  (806,087,884 ) 109,107,230  (793,292,481 ) (17,701,832 ) (810,994,313 )

Balances at December 31, 2007 P1,034,139,179  (P17,177,884 ) P2,086,941,086  P151,039,682  P30,895,367  (P543,978,573 ) P1,200,000,000  P8,884,408,730  (P183,338,740 ) P12,642,928,847  P5,408,197  P12,648,337,044

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
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                       Minority  Total  
                       Interests   Stockholders’
          Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent          (Note 10 ) Equity
             Excess of the     
           Unrealized   Acquisition                        Retained Earnings    Cost
         Cumulative   Gain (Loss) on  Cost over the                                 (Note 19)    of Common
       Additional   Translation  Available-for-  Carrying Value   Appropriated     Stock Held in
   Capital Stock   Subscriptions   Paid-in Capital   Adjustments   Sale Financial   of Minority  for Future     Treasury

   (Note 19 ) Receivable  (Notes 19 and 27 ) of  Subsidiaries  Assets  Interests (Note 10 ) Expansion  Unappropriated  (Notes 19 and 27 ) Total 

Balance at January 1, 2006 P1,022,700,055  (P17,177,884 ) P1,771,347,335  P218,682,039  (P316,825 ) P–  P1,200,000,000  P5,825,639,952  (P364,416,912 ) P9,656,457,760  P241,524,118  P9,897,981,878

Net income for the year –  –  –  –  –  –  –  2,156,618,463  –  2,156,618,463  3,539,460  2,160,157,923

Translation adjustments 

 during the year –  –  –  (145,731,676 ) –  –  –  –  –  (145,731,676 ) (7,846,639 ) (153,578,315 )

Change in fair value of 

 available-for-sale financial assets –  –  –  –  118,734  –  –  –  –  118,734  –  118,734

Total income and expenses

 for the year –  –  –  (145,731,676 ) 118,734  –  –  2,156,618,463  –  2,011,005,521  (4,307,179 ) 2,006,698,342

Subscriptions and issuances of shares 1,482,271  –  19,557,197  –  –  –  –  –  –  21,039,468  –  21,039,468

Re-issuances of treasury shares for 

 stock purchase exercised –  –  (10,746,278 ) –  –  –  –  –  57,872,662  47,126,384  –  47,126,384

Re-issuances of treasury shares for 

 stock purchased by retirement fund –  –  (2,711,887 ) –  –  –  –  –  14,098,280  11,386,393  –  11,386,393

Cost of stock options granted –  –  40,042,485  –  –  –  –  –  –  40,042,485  –  40,042,485

Cash dividends –  –  –  –  –  –  –  (678,484,020 ) –  (678,484,020 ) –  (678,484,020 )

Acquisition of minority 

 interest (Note 10) –  –  –  –  –  (168,257,659 ) –  –  –  (168,257,659 ) (215,742,341 ) (384,000,000 )

   1,482,271  –  46,141,517  –  –  (168,257,659 ) –  (678,484,020 ) 71,970,942  (727,146,949 ) (215,742,341 ) (942,889,290 )

Balance at December 31, 2006 P1,024,182,326  (P17,177,884 ) P1,817,488,852  P72,950,363  (P198,091 ) (P168,257,659 ) P1,200,000,000  P7,303,774,395  (P292,445,970 ) P10,940,316,332  P21,474,598  P10,961,790,930

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
 Years Ended December 31
     2008  2007  2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Income before income tax P3,211,065,192  P3,135,014,447  P2,902,954,155
Adjustments for:   
 Depreciation and amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 1,728,879,763  1,579,558,873  1,573,844,757
 Interest income (Note 23) (208,464,081 ) (142,988,980 ) (135,490,812 )
 Interest expense (Note 23) 105,080,420  55,469,288  80,407,514
 Stock options expense (Note 27) 85,654,300  85,907,703  40,042,485
 Provisions for:   
  Impairment in value of receivables and inventories (Note 22) 61,726,457  39,507,137  –
  Impairment in value of property, plant and equipment and investment properties (Note 22) 3,792,817  32,308,313  –
 Net unrealized foreign exchange loss 39,641,095  1,035,909  12,732,993
 Loss on disposals and retirements of property and equipment 11,643,689  31,593,162  33,456,907
 Gain on disposal of property and equipment (8,404,409 ) –  –
 Reversal of impairment in investment property (Note 12) (1,950,646 ) (61,452,608 ) –
 Excess of fair value of net assets over acquisition cost of a subsidiary (Note 10) –  –  (68,415,573 )
 Mark-to-market gain on derivative asset (Note 32) –  (21,456,517 ) (59,789,200 )
 Equity in net loss of a joint venture (Note 11) –  –  22,907,585
Income before working capital changes 5,028,664,597  4,734,496,727  4,402,650,811
Decrease (increase) in:   
 Short-term investments (20,002,018 ) 230,932,964  43,656,606
 Receivables  (28,002,090 ) (229,874,271 ) (19,666,326 )
 Inventories (1,124,886,414 ) (377,203,613 ) 113,717,410
 Other current assets (236,461,839 ) (112,737,627 ) (146,367,422 )
Increase (decrease) in:   
 Trade payables and other current liabilities 1,766,114,037  738,688,175  697,621,491
 Provisions (11,197,205 ) (17,837,907 ) (13,878,455 )
 Accrued benefit cost (43,086,088 ) 153,388,629  56,405,890
 Operating lease payable 5,008,518  (37,023,197 ) 177,466,757
Cash generated from operations 5,336,151,498  5,082,829,880  5,311,606,762
Income taxes paid (830,898,036 ) (778,501,594 ) (614,031,740 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,505,253,462  4,304,328,286  4,697,575,022

(Forward)
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 Years Ended December 31
     2008  2007  2006

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
Additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 13) (P2,921,797,606 ) (P2,055,998,382 ) (P1,920,244,179 )
Acquisition of a subsidiary - net of cash acquired (Note 10) (1,584,746,810 ) –  25,617,679
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 311,707,055  7,375,429  57,418,024
Increase in other noncurrent assets  (295,445,514 ) (332,749,634 ) (61,062,648 )
Interest received 203,340,056  128,571,500  110,853,954
Acquisition of stock (41,866,500 )  
Acquisition of minority interest (Note 10) –  (413,657,153 ) (384,000,000 )
Advances to a joint venture (Note 11) –  –  (37,002,202 )
Net cash used in investing activities (4,328,809,319 ) (2,666,458,240 ) (2,208,419,372 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Payments of:   
 Cash dividends (1,212,783,181 ) (364,548,699 ) (659,641,177 )
 Long-term debt (49,747,319 ) (96,180,410 ) (78,484,848 )
 Liability for acquisition of a business –  (251,404,641 ) (172,303,733 )
Proceeds from:   
 Long term debt 2,388,856,231  132,499,138  –
 Re-issuances of treasury shares 75,907,397  109,107,230  58,512,778
 Issuances of and subscriptions to capital stock 5,866,255  202,236,470  21,039,468
Increase (decrease) in:   
 Other noncurrent liabilities (8,819,817 ) (9,803,904 ) (21,071,021 )
 Minority interests –  20,234,407  7,846,639
Interest paid (92,817,746 ) (24,541,469 ) (25,758,710 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  1,106,461,820  (282,401,878 ) (869,860,604 )

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH 
 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS –  (1,035,909 ) (12,732,993 )

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,282,905,963  1,354,432,259  1,606,562,053

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,575,943,093  4,221,510,834  2,614,948,781

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 AT END OF YEAR (Note 6) P6,858,849,056  P5,575,943,093  P4,221,510,834

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
1. Corporate Information

Jollibee Foods Corporation (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines.  The Parent 
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Jollibee Group”) are involved primarily 
in the development, operation and franchising of Quick Service Restaurants (QSR) under the 
trade names “Jollibee,” “Chowking,” “Greenwich,” “Red Ribbon,” “Delifrance,” “Yonghe King,” and 
“Hongzhuangyuan.”  The other activities of the Jollibee Group include manufacturing and property 
leasing in support of the QSR systems and in other independent business activities (see Notes 5 and 
10).  The shares of stock of the Parent Company are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange.
 
The registered office address of the Parent Company is 10th Floor, Jollibee Plaza Building, No. 10 
Emerald Avenue, Ortigas Centre, Pasig City.
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the 
Board of Directors (BOD) on April 28, 2009.
 
 

2. Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Jollibee Group have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis, except for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, which have been measured at fair value.  The 
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s 
functional and presentation currency under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).  All values 
are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with PFRS.  PFRS includes 
statements named PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) issued by the Financial 
Reporting Standards Council, and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company 
and its subsidiaries.  The subsidiaries are presented in Note 10.  The financial statements of the 
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealized profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full.
 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Jollibee 
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.  
Control is achieved where the Jollibee Group has the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  The results of subsidiaries acquired 

or disposed during the year are included in the consolidated statements of income from the date of 
acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Jollibee Group 
and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of income and within stockholders’ 
equity in the consolidated balance sheets, separately from equity attributable to equity holders of 
the Parent.  The acquisition of minority interests is accounted for using the entity concept method, 
whereby the difference between the cost of acquisition and the carrying value of the share of the net 
assets acquired is recognized as an equity transaction. 
 
Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years, except 
for the adoption of the following amended PAS and Philippine Interpretations from IFRIC, which the 
Jollibee Group has adopted starting January 1, 2008:

•  Amendments to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and PFRS 7, Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures - Reclassification of Financial Assets, provide guidance on reclassification 
from held for trading investments to either loans and receivables, AFS financial assets and held-to-
maturity (HTM) investments.

•  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 11, PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions, requires 
arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entity’s equity instruments to be 
accounted for as an equity-settled scheme by the entity even if (a) the entity chooses or is required 
to buy those equity instruments (e.g., treasury shares) from another party, or (b) the shareholders 
of the entity provide the equity instruments needed.  It also provides guidance on how subsidiaries, 
in their separate financial statements, account for such schemes when their employees receive 
rights to the equity instruments of the parent.

•  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements, covers contractual 
arrangements arising from public-to-private service concession arrangements if control of the assets 
remains in public hands but the private sector operator is responsible for construction activities, as 
well as for operating and maintaining the public sector infrastructure.

•  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding 
Requirements and their Interaction, provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount 
of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognized as an asset under PAS 19, Employee 
Benefits.

The amendments and interpretations did not have an impact on the Jollibee Group’s financial position 
or performance as of December 31, 2008.
 
Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Jollibee Group did not early adopt the following new and revised standards, Philippine 
Interpretations and amendments that have been approved but are not yet effective:
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• Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and PAS 
27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, become effective for financial years beginning 
on or after January 1, 2009.  The amendment to PFRS 1 allows an entity to determine the “cost” 
of investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates in its opening PFRS financial 
statements in accordance with PAS 27 or using a deemed cost.  The amendment to PAS 27 requires 
all dividends from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate to be recognized in the 
statements of income in the separate financial statements.  The adoption of this standard will have 
no impact on the Jollibee Group’s consolidated financial statements.

• Revised PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, becomes effective for financial years beginning on 
or after January 1, 2009.  It restricts the definition of “vesting condition” to a condition that 
includes an explicit or implicit requirement to provide services.  Any other conditions are non-
vesting conditions, which have to be taken into account to determine the fair value of the equity 
instruments granted.  In case the award does not vest as a result of a failure to meet a non-vesting 
condition that is within the control of either the entity or the counterparty, this must be accounted 
for as a cancellation.  The revised standard will have no impact on the Jollibee Group’s consolidated 
financial statements.

• PFRS 3R, Business Combinations, and PAS 27R, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, 
become effective for financial years beginning on or after July 1, 2009.  PFRS 3R introduces a 
number of changes in the accounting for business combinations that will impact the amount 
of goodwill recognized, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs and future 
reported results.  PAS 27R requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary 
be accounted for as an equity transaction.  Therefore, such a change will have no impact on 
goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.  Furthermore, the amended standard changes the 
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary, as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.  The 
changes introduced by the revised standards must be applied prospectively and will affect future 
acquisitions and transactions with minority interests.  The Jollibee Group is currently assessing 
the impact of the revised standards on its consolidated financial statements when it adopts the 
standards on January 1, 2010.

• PFRS 8, Operating Segments, becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after  
January 1, 2009, and will replace PAS 14, Segment Reporting.  It adopts a full management approach 
to reporting segment information.  The information reported would be that which management 
uses internally for evaluating the performance of operating segments and allocating resources 
to those segments.  Such information may be different from that reported in balance sheets and 
statements of income and companies will need to provide explanations and reconciliations of the 
differences.  The Jollibee Group is currently assessing the impact of the standard on its consolidated 
financial statements when it adopts the standards on January 1, 2010.

 
• Revised PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, becomes effective for financial years 

beginning on or after January 1, 2009.  It separates owner and non-owner changes in equity.  The 
consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity will include only details of transactions 
with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line.  In addition, the 
standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income, which presents all items of income 
and expense recognized in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognized income and 

expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements.  The Jollibee Group is currently 
assessing the impact of the revised standard on its consolidated financial statements when it adopts 
the standard on January 1, 2009.

• Revised PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after  
January 1, 2009.  The standard has been revised to require capitalization of borrowing costs 
when such costs relate to a qualifying asset.  A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.  The Jollibee Group is currently 
assessing the impact of the revised standard on its consolidated financial statements when it adopts 
the standard on January 1, 2010.

• Amendments to PAS 32, Financial Instrument: Presentation, and PAS 1, Presentation of Financial 
Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation, become 
effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2009.  The amendment to PAS 32 
requires certain puttable financial statements and obligations arising on liquidation to be classified 
as equity if certain criteria are met.  The amendment to PAS 1 requires disclosure of certain 
information relating to puttable instruments classified as equity.    The amendment will have no 
impact on the financial statements.

• Amendments to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged 
Items, becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after July 1, 2009.  The amendment 
addresses the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a 
hedged risk or portion in particular situations.  It clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a 
portion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as a hedged item.  
The Jollibee Group assessed that the amendment will have no impact on its financial position or 
performance as it has not entered into any such hedges.

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, became effective for financial 
years beginning on or after July 1, 2008. It requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted 
for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are granted and therefore, part 
of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the award credits and deferred over 
the period that the award credits are fulfilled.  The Jollibee Group expects that this interpretation 
will have no impact on its financial statements as no such schemes currently exist.

 
• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, becomes 

effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2012.  The interpretation is to be 
applied retroactively.  It clarifies when and how receipts and related expenses from the sale of real 
estate should be recognized if an agreement between a developer and a buyer is reached before 
the construction of the real estate is completed.  Furthermore, the interpretation provides guidance 
on how to determine whether an agreement is within the scope of PAS 11, Construction Contracts, 
or PAS 18, Revenue.  The interpretation will have no significant impact on the financial position or 
performance of the Jollibee Group.

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in Foreign Operations, became 
effective for financial years beginning on or before October 1, 2008.  It provides guidance in 
identifying the foreign currency risks that qualify for hedge accounting in the hedge of a net 
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investment, where within the Jollibee Group the hedging instruments can be held in the hedge of 
a net investment and how an entity should determine the amount of foreign currency gain or loss, 
relating to both the net investment and the hedging instrument, to be recycled on disposal of the 
net investment.  The interpretation will have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of 
the Jollibee Group.

Improvements to Existing Accounting Standards
The Jollibee Group did not early adopt the following improvements to existing accounting standards 
that have been approved but are not yet effective.  The Jollibee Group is currently assessing the 
impact of the following improvements to existing standards but anticipates that the changes will have 
no material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

• PFRS 7 removes the reference to “total interest income” as a component of finance costs.

• Revised PAS 1 provides that assets and liabilities classified as held for trading in accordance with PAS 
39 are not automatically classified as current in the balance sheets.

• PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, clarifies that only the 
implementation guidance that is an integral part of a PFRS is mandatory when selecting accounting 
policies.

• PAS 10, Events after the Balance Sheet Date, clarifies that dividends declared after the end of the 
reporting period are not obligations.

• PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, replaces the term “net selling price” with “fair value less 
costs to sell.”  It further clarifies that items of property, plant and equipment held for rental that 
are routinely sold in the ordinary course of business after rental are transferred to inventory when 
rental ceases and they are held for sale.

• PAS 18 replaces the term “direct costs” with “transaction costs” as defined in PAS 39.
 
• PAS 19 revises the definition of past service costs, return on plan assets and short-term and long-

term employee benefits.  Amendments to plans that result in reduction in benefits related to future 
services are accounted for as curtailment.  It deletes the reference to the recognition of contingent 
liabilities to ensure consistency with PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

• PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance, provides that 
loans granted in the future with no or low interest rates will not be exempt from the requirement 
to impute interest.  The difference between the amount received and the discounted amount is 
accounted for as government grant.  Various terms were revised to be consistent with other PFRS.

• Revised PAS 23 revises the definition of borrowing costs to consolidate the types of items that are 
considered components of borrowing costs- the components interest expense calculated using the 
effective interest rate method in accordance with PAS 39.

• PAS 27 states that when a parent entity accounts for a subsidiary in accordance with PAS 39 in its financial 
statements, this treatment continues when the subsidiary is subsequently classified as held for sale.

• PAS 28, Investments in Associates, establishes that if an associate is accounted for at fair value in 
accordance with PAS 39, only the requirement of PAS 28 to disclose the nature and extent of any 
significant restrictions on the ability of the associate to transfer funds to the entity in the form of 
cash or repayment of loan applies.

• PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, provides that if a joint venture is accounted for at fair value 
in accordance with PAS 39, only the requirement of PAS 31 to disclose the commitments of the 
venturer and the joint venture as well as summary financial information about the assets, liabilities, 
income and expense will apply.

• PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, requires that earnings per share be disclosed in interim 
financial reports if an entity is within the scope of PAS 33, Earnings per Share.

• PAS 36, Impairment of Assets, provides that if discounted cash flows are used to estimate “fair value 
less costs to sell”, additional disclosure is required about the discount rate, consistent with the 
disclosures required when the discounted cash flows are used to estimate “value in use.”

• PAS 38, Intangible Assets, requires that expenditure on advertising and promotional activities be 
recognized as an expense when the Jollibee Group has either the right to access the goods or has 
received the services.

 
• PAS 39 clarifies that changes in circumstances relating to derivatives are not reclassification and 

therefore maybe either removed from, or included in, the fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) 
classification after initial recognition.  It removes the reference to a segment when determining 
whether an instrument qualifies as a hedge.  It further requires the use of the revised effective 
interest rate when re-measuring a debt instrument on the cessation of fair value hedge accounting.

• PAS 40, Investment Property, revises the scope such that property under construction or 
development for future use as an investment property is classified as investment property.  If 
fair value cannot be reliably determined, the investment under construction will be measured at 
cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction is complete.  It revises the 
conditions for a voluntary change in accounting policy to be consistent with PAS 8 and clarifies that 
the carrying amount of investment property held under lease is the valuation obtained increased by 
any recognized liability.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash with original maturities of more than three months but not exceeding one year and are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change and value.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition.  The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated 
balance sheets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  In the case 
of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is 
done using settlement date accounting.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments.  Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, 
which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability).  
The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at FVPL, includes 
transaction cost.
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Jollibee Group classifies its financial instruments in the following 
categories: financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
(HTM) investments, AFS financial assets and other financial liabilities.  The classification depends on 
the purpose for which the instruments are acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.  
Management determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, 
re-evaluates this classification at every reporting date.

Determination of Fair Value.  The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at 
balance sheet date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for 
long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.   When 
current bid and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides 
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic 
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by 
using appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, 
comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models 
and other relevant valuation models.

Day 1 Profit.  Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value 
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation 
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Jollibee Group recognizes 
the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 profit) in the consolidated 
statements of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset.  In cases where 
data which is not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value 
is only recognized in the consolidated statements of income when the inputs become observable 
or when the instrument is derecognized.  For each transaction, the Jollibee Group determines the 
appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 profit amount.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVPL.  Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held-for-trading and financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.  

Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the 
near term.  Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for 
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee contract.  
Assets under this category are classified as current assets if expected to be realized within 12 months 
from balance sheet date and as noncurrent assets if maturity date is more than a year from balance 
sheet date.  Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income.
 
Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as at FVPL if the following criteria are met: 

• the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise 
arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; 

• the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their performance 
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or

• the financial asset contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not 
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be 
separately recorded.  

The Jollibee Group has no financial assets classified under this category as of December 31, 2008 and 
2007.

Loans and Receivables.  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.  Such assets are carried at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method.  Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as 
through the amortization process.  Loans and receivables are classified as current assets when the 
Jollibee Group expects to realize or collect the asset within twelve months from balance sheet date.  
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Jollibee Group’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, refundable 
deposits, employee car plan and receivable from Manila Electric Company (Meralco) are classified 
under this category (see Note 32).

HTM Investments.  Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturity are classified as HTM when there is positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  
Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification.  HTM 
investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost.  This cost is computed as the amount 
initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using 
the effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognized amount and the 
maturity amount.  This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to 
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other 
premiums and discounts.  For investments carried at amortized cost, gains and losses are recognized 
in the consolidated statements of income when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as 
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well as through the amortization process.  Assets under this category are classified as current assets 
if maturity is within 12 months from balance sheet date and as noncurrent assets if maturity date is 
more than a year from balance sheet date.
 
The Jollibee Group has no investment classified under this category as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

AFS Financial Assets.  AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are designated in 
this category or are not classified in any of the other categories.  Subsequent to initial recognition, 
AFS financial assets are carried at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets.  Changes in the 
fair value of such assets are reported as net unrealized gain or loss on AFS financial assets in the 
stockholders’ equity section of the consolidated balance sheets until the investment is derecognized 
or the investment is determined to be impaired.  On derecognition or impairment, the cumulative gain 
or loss previously reported in stockholders’ equity is transferred to the consolidated statements of 
income.  Interest earned on holding AFS financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statements 
of income using the effective interest method.  Assets under this category are classified as current 
assets if expected to be realized within 12 months from balance sheet date and as noncurrent assets if 
maturity date is more than a year from balance sheet date.

The Jollibee Group’s investments in club shares and other shares of stock are classified under this 
category (see Note 32).

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at FVPL.  Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these result from 
trading activities or derivative transactions that are not accounted for as accounting hedges, or when 
the Jollibee Group elects to designate a financial liability under this category.

The Jollibee Group has no financial liability classified under this category as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Other Financial Liabilities.  This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading 
or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability.  These include liabilities arising from 
operations or borrowings. 
 
The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortized 
cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method of amortization (or 
accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction costs.

This category includes trade payables and other current liabilities and long-term debt (see Note 32).
 
Classification of Financial Instruments Between Debt and Equity 
A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are 
potentially unfavorable to the Jollibee Group; or

• satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Jollibee Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial 
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

Debt Issue Costs 
Debt issue costs are deducted against long-term debt and are amortized over the terms of the related 
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Embedded Derivatives
An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if all of 
the following conditions are met: a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative 
are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract; 
b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition 
of a derivative; and c) the hybrid or combined instrument is not recognized at FVPL.

Subsequent reassessment is prohibited unless there is a change in the terms of the contract that 
significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required under the contract, in which 
case reassessment is required.  The Jollibee Group determines whether a modification to cash flows 
is significant by considering the extent to which the expected future cash flows associated with the 
embedded derivative, the host contract or both have changed and whether the change is significant 
relative to the previously expected cash flow on the contract.

The Jollibee Group has identified and bifurcated embedded currency in relation to its acquisition of 
RRB Holdings, Inc. (RRBH) (see Note 32).

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized where:

(a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

(b) the Jollibee Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an 
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” 
arrangement; or

 
(c) the Jollibee Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either 
 (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 
asset.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Where the Jollibee Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control 
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Jollibee Group’s continuing involvement in 
the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of the 
consideration that the Jollibee Group could be required to pay.  

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 
or expired.  Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Jollibee Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost.  If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and 
receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).  The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.  The amount of the loss is 
recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

The Jollibee Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets 
that are not individually significant.  If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment 
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in 
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is 
collectively assessed for impairment.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for 
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment 
of impairment.
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account.  The amount of the 
reversal is recognized in the consolidated statements of income.  Interest income continues to be 
accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.  
Loans and receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of future recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to 
the Jollibee Group.  If in subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases 
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 

recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance for impairment 
losses account.  If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income under “Other revenue” account.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss 
is recognized in the consolidated statements of income under “Provision for (reversal of) impairment 
losses” account, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost 
at reversal date.

AFS Financial Assets.  The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective 
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.  In the case of equity investments 
classified as AFS financial assets, an objective evidence of impairment would include a significant 
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost.  Where there is evidence 
of impairment, the cumulative loss, is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and 
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the 
consolidated statements of income, is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income.  Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the 
consolidated statements of income; increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in 
equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based 
on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost.  Future interest income is based 
on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to 
discount future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.  Such accrual is recorded 
in the consolidated statements of income.  If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument 
increased and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognized in the consolidated statements of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the 
consolidated statements of income. 

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 
balance sheets if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.  This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets 
and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated balance sheets.
 
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value.  Costs are accounted for as follows:
 
 Processed inventories - First-in, first-out basis.  Cost includes direct 
   materials and labor and a proportion of
   manufacturing overhead costs based on 
   normal operating capacity.

 Food supplies, novelty items and - Purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis.
    packaging, store and other supplies    
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The net realizable value of processed inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  

The net realizable value of food supplies, novelty items and packaging, store and other supplies is the 
current replacement cost.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of land and buildings held by the Jollibee Group for capital appreciation 
and rental income purposes.  Investment properties, except land, are carried at cost, including 
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.  Cost also includes 
the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the 
recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property.  
Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value.

Depreciation of buildings and building improvements is calculated on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets which is 5 to 20 years.

The useful lives and method of depreciation of the assets are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at 
each financial year-end.
 
Investment property is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its 
disposal.  Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized 
in the consolidated statements of income in the year of retirement or disposal.  
 
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced 
by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or completion 
of construction or development.  Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, 
there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of 
development with a view to sell.
 
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization and any accumulated impairment in value.  Such cost includes the cost of replacing part 
of property, plant and equipment at the time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, 
and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing.  Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.
 
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties 
and taxes and any other costs directly attributable in bringing the asset to its working condition and 
location for its intended use.  Cost also includes any related asset retirement obligation.  Expenditures 
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and 
maintenance, are normally charged to income in the year in which the costs are incurred.  In situations 
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future 
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment 

beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional 
costs of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated 
useful lives of the assets:

 Land improvements 5 years
 Plant and buildings, commercial condominium
  units and improvements 5-20 years
 Leasehold rights and improvements 2-10 years or term of the lease,  
    whichever is shorter
 Office, store and food processing equipment 2-15 years
 Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
 Transportation equipment 3-5 years

The useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to ensure that 
the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of 
economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the 
property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
 
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation 
and amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain 
or loss is credited or charged to current operations.
 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further 
depreciation is credited or charged to current operations.
 
Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at cost.  This 
includes the cost of construction, equipment and other direct costs.  Construction in progress is not 
depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Business Combinations and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.  This involves 
recognizing identifiable assets (including previously unrecognized intangible assets) and liabilities 
(including contingent liabilities and excluding future restructuring) of the acquired business at fair value.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost 
of the business combination over the Jollibee Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.  Following initial recognition, goodwill is 
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measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.  For the purpose of impairment testing, 
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the 
Jollibee Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit 
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Jollibee 
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.  Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill 
is so allocated: 

• represents the lowest level within the Jollibee Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal 
management purposes; and 

• is not larger than a segment based on either the Jollibee Group’s primary or secondary reporting 
format determined in accordance with PAS 14, Segment Reporting.  

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined by discussing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (group 
of cash generating units), to which the goodwill relates.  Where the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit (group of cash generating units) is less than carrying amount, an impairment loss is 
recognized.  Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) 
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation 
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on 
disposal of the operation.  Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative 
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Negative goodwill, which is not in excess of the fair values of acquired identifiable non-monetary 
assets of subsidiaries, is charged directly to income.  
 
When a business combination involves more than one exchange transaction (occurs in stages), each 
exchange transaction is treated separately by the acquirer, using the cost of the transaction and fair 
value information at the date of each exchange transaction, to determine the amount of goodwill 
associated with that transaction.  Any adjustment to fair values relating to the previously held interest 
is a revaluation and is accounted for as such. 

Transfers of assets between commonly controlled entities are accounted for under historical cost 
accounting.

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus 
cumulative translation adjustments and goodwill is recognized in the consolidated statements of 
income.

Business Combinations Involving Entities under Common Control
The merger between Zenith and Vizmin was accounted for under pooling of interest method. Under 
this method, the assets, liabilities and equity of the acquired companies for the reporting period in 
which the common control business combinations occur, and for any comparative periods presented, 

are included in the consolidated financial statements at their carrying amounts as if the combinations 
had occurred from the date when the acquired companies first became under the control of the 
Parent Company.  The excess of the cost of business combinations over the net carrying amounts of 
the assets and liabilities and historical retained earnings of the acquired companies is considered as 
“Excess of acquisition cost over the carrying value of minority interest” account in the stockholders 
equity section of the consolidated balance sheets.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment and investment properties are reviewed for 
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 
recoverable.  If any such indication exists, and if the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts.  The 
recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value less costs to sell or value in use.  The 
fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length 
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less costs of disposal.  In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  Impairment losses are recognized 
in the consolidated statements of income in those expense categories consistent with the function of 
the impaired asset.

For nonfinancial assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to 
whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or 
may have decreased.  If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously 
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If that is 
the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased 
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is recognized in the 
consolidated statements of income.
 
Treasury Shares
Acquisitions of treasury shares are recorded at cost.  The total cost of treasury shares is shown in the 
consolidated balance sheets as a deduction from the total stockholders’ equity.  Upon re-issuance or 
resale of the treasury shares, treasury shares account is credited for the cost of the treasury shares 
determined using the simple average method.  Gains on sale are credited to additional paid-in capital.  
Losses are charged against additional paid-in capital but only to the extent of previous gains from 
original issuance, sale or retirement for the same class of stock.  Otherwise, losses are charged to 
retained earnings.

Dividends on Common Shares
Dividends on common shares are recognized as liability and deducted from stockholders’ equity when 
approved by the shareholders of the Parent Company and the subsidiaries.  Dividends for the year that 
are approved after balance sheet date are dealt with as an event after balance sheet date.
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Revenue
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
transaction will flow to the Jollibee Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
 
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

• Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the customers, which is normally upon delivery.  Sales returns and sales 
discounts are deducted from sales to arrive at net sales shown in the consolidated statements of 
income.

• Revenue from royalty fees is recognized as the royalty accrues based on certain percentages of the 
franchisees’ net sales.

• Revenue from franchise fees is recognized when all services or conditions relating to the transaction 
have been substantially performed.  

• Dividend income is recognized when the Jollibee Group’s right as a shareholder to receive the 
payment is established.

• Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.  For 
income tax reporting, rental income is continued to be recognized on the basis of the terms of the 
lease agreements.

• Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.
 
Retirement Benefits
The Jollibee Group has a number of funded, non-contributory retirement plans, administered 
by trustees, covering the permanent employees of the Parent Company and its Philippine-based 
subsidiaries.  The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the 
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.  Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income 
or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for the plans at the end 
of the previous reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the 
fair value of plan assets at that date.  These gains or losses are recognized over the expected average 
remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans.

The past service cost, if any, is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the average period 
until the benefits become vested.  If the benefits are already vested immediately following the 
introduction of, or changes to, a retirement plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
and actuarial gains and losses not recognized, reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and 
the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.  If such aggregate 
is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative 
unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits 
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in the future contributions to the plans.

If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past 
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the 
plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the current period 
and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately to the extent that they exceed 
any reduction in the present value of those economic benefits.  If there is no change or an increase in 
the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial losses of the current period and 
past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately.  Similarly, net actuarial gains of the 
current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period exceeding any increase 
in the present value of the economic benefits stated above are recognized immediately if the asset 
is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost 
and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or 
reductions in the future contributions to the plans.  If there is no change or a decrease in the present 
value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial gains of the current period after the deduction 
of past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately.

The Jollibee Group also participates in various governments defined contribution schemes for the 
People’s Republic of China (PRC)-based subsidiaries.  Under these schemes, retirement benefits 
of existing and retired employees are guaranteed by the local retirement benefit plan and each 
subsidiary has no further obligations beyond the annual contribution.
 
Share-based Payments
The Jollibee Group has stock option plans granting management and employees of the Jollibee Group, 
an option to purchase a fixed number of shares of stock at a stated price during a specified period 
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of the options granted to the Jollibee Group’s management and employees that become 
vested is recognized in the consolidated statements of income over the period in which the 
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant 
employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”).

The cost of the options that was granted after November 7, 2002, and not yet vested by January 1, 
2005, is measured by reference to the fair value at the date in which they are granted.  The fair value 
is determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model (see Note 27).  The cumulative expense 
recognized for the share-based transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the 
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Jollibee Group’s best estimate of the number 
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.  The charge or credit in the consolidated statements 
of income or the investment account for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense 
recognized as of the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is 
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vested irrespective of whether or not the 
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of a share-based award are modified, as a minimum, an expense is recognized as if 
the terms had not been modified.  In addition, an expense is recognized for any modification, which 
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increases the total fair value of the share-based payment agreement, or is otherwise beneficial to the 
employee as measured at the date of modification.  

Where a share-based award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, 
and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.  However, if a new award 
is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is 
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award.

Research and Development Costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred.  Development cost incurred on an individual project is carried 
forward when its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured.  Any expenditure carried 
forward is amortized in line with the expected future sales from the related project.

Operating Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
agreement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.  A reassessment is made 
after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a)  there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
 
(b)  a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension 

was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or 

(d)  there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting will commence or cease from the date when the 
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of 
renewal or extension for scenario (b).
 
Leases where the lessor retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets 
are classified as operating leases.  Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the 
consolidated statements of income on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.  For income tax 
reporting, operating lease payments continue to be recognized as expense on the basis of the terms of 
the lease agreements.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Jollibee Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 

expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value 
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.  Where discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.  Each entity in the Jollibee Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that 
functional currency.  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate at the 
date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated 
using the closing rate of exchange at balance sheet date.  All differences are taken to the consolidated 
statements of income.  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. 
 
The functional currencies of the Jollibee Group’s foreign operations are U.S. dollar, Chinese yuan, 
Indonesia rupiah, Vietnam dong and Hong Kong dollar.  As of the reporting date, the assets and 
liabilities of these foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of the Parent 
Company at the rate of exchange ruling at balance sheet date while their income and expense 
accounts are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.  The resulting translation 
differences are included in the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity under 
the account “Cumulative translation adjustments of subsidiaries.”  On disposal of a foreign entity, 
the accumulated exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statements of income as a 
component of the gain or loss on disposal.

Income Tax

Current Tax.  Current tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authority.  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax.  Deferred tax, is provided using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary 
differences at balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

• where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transactions, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest 
in a joint venture, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled 
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits 
of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and net operating loss 
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carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

• where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and 
interest in a joint venture, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable 
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance 
sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will 
allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the 
same taxation authority.

Value Added Tax.  Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of tax, except:

• where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part 
of the expense item as applicable; and

• receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
accounts “Other current assets” or “Trade payables and other current liabilities” in the consolidated 
balance sheets.

Business Segments
The Jollibee Group is organized and managed separately according to the nature of business.  The 
three major operating businesses of the Jollibee Group are food service, franchising and leasing.  
These operating businesses are the basis upon which the Jollibee Group reports its primary segment 
information presented in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Earnings Per Share (EPS) Attributable to the Equity Holders of the Parent
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders of the 

Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, 
after considering the retroactive effect of stock dividend declaration, if any.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders 
of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 
period, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared and potential common shares resulting 
from the assumed exercise of outstanding stock options.  Outstanding stock options will have dilutive 
effect under the treasury stock method only when the average market price of the underlying 
common share during the period exceeds the exercise price of the option.
 
Where the EPS effect of the shares to be issued to management and employees under the stock 
option plan would be anti-dilutive, the basic and diluted EPS are stated at the same amount.

Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed unless 
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent assets 
are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

Events After Balance Sheet Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Jollibee Group’s financial 
position at balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the Jollibee Group’s consolidated 
financial statements.  Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to 
consolidated financial statements when material.
 
 

4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.  However, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Jollibee Group’s accounting policies, management has made the 
following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional Currency.  Management has determined that the functional and presentation currency of 
the Parent Company and its Philippine-based subsidiaries is the Philippine peso, being the currency of 
the primary environment in which the Parent Company and its major subsidiaries operate.  

Asset Retirement Obligation.  Management has determined that the Jollibee Group has no material 
obligation, constructive or legal, for the dismantling and removing items of property upon retirement 
and restoring the site on which these are located.
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Operating Lease Commitments - Jollibee Group as Lessor.  The Jollibee Group has entered into 
commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio.  Management has determined, 
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that the Jollibee Group 
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the properties which are leased out.  
Accordingly, the leases are accounted for as operating leases.
 
Rent income amounted to P83.0 million, P96.3 million and P88.1 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively (see Note 30).

Operating Lease Commitments - Jollibee Group as Lessee.  The Jollibee Group has entered into 
commercial property leases for its QSR and offices as a lessee.  Management has determined that all 
the significant risks and benefits of ownership of these properties, which the Jollibee Group leases 
under operating lease arrangements, remain with the lessor.  Accordingly, the leases are accounted for 
as operating leases.

Rent expense amounted to P2,723.7 million, P2,391.0 million and P2,137.2 million in 2008, 2007 and 
2006, respectively (see Note 30).

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets - Significant and Prolonged Decline in Fair Value.  The Jollibee 
Group determines that an AFS investment is impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value below its cost.  The Jollibee Group determines that a decline in fair value 
of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant decline and a decline for a period of 
more than twelve months is considered to be a prolonged decline.  This determination of what is 
significant or prolonged requires judgment.  In making this judgment, the Jollibee Group evaluates, 
among other factors, the normal volatility in price.  In addition, impairment may be appropriate 
when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector 
performance.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at balance 
sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Impairment of Receivables.  The Jollibee Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a 
level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  The level of allowance 
is evaluated on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts.  These factors 
include, but are not limited to, the length of the Jollibee Group’s relationship with the customers and 
counterparties, average age of accounts and collection experience.  The Jollibee Group performs a 
regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with objective 
evidence of impairment and provide the appropriate allowance for impairment losses.  The review 
is accomplished using a combination of specific and collective assessments.  The amount and timing 
of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Jollibee Group made different judgments 
or utilized different methodologies.  An increase in allowance account would increase general and 
administrative expenses and decrease current and noncurrent assets.

The allowance for impairment loss on trade receivables as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted 
to P77.1 million and P82.6 million, respectively.  The carrying value of receivables amounted to 
P1,940.7 million and P1,942.4 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 7).
 
Impairment of AFS Financial Assets - Calculation of Impairment Losses.  The computation for the 
impairment of AFS debt instruments requires an estimation of the present value of the expected 
future cash flows and the selection of an appropriate discount rate.  In the case of AFS equity 
instruments, the Jollibee Group expands its analysis to consider changes in the investee’s industry and 
sector performance, legal and regulatory framework, changes in technology, and other factors that 
affect the recoverability of the Jollibee Group’s investments.

The carrying values of AFS investments, included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the 
consolidated balance sheets, amounted to P34.9 million and P46.2 million as of December 31, 2008 
and 2007, respectively (see Notes 15 and 32).

Net Realizable Value of Inventories.  The Jollibee Group writes down inventories to net realizable 
value, through the use of an allowance account, whenever the net realizable value of inventories 
becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels 
or other causes.  

The estimates of net realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time 
the estimates are made of the amounts the inventories are expected to be realized.  These estimates 
take into consideration fluctuations of prices or costs directly relating to events occurring after balance 
sheet date to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at balance sheet date.  The 
allowance account is reviewed on a regular basis to reflect the accurate valuation in the financial 
records.

The Jollibee Group assessed that the net realizable value of inventories is lower than cost, hence it 
recognized accumulated impairment losses on inventories amounting to P39.9 million and 
P14.1 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The carrying values of inventories 
amounted to P2,727.5 million and P1,629.4 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively 
(see Note 8).

Estimated Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties.  The Jollibee 
Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties 
based on the period over which the property, plant and equipment and investment properties are 
expected to be available for use and on the collective assessment of the industry practice, internal 
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets.  The estimated useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment and investment properties are reviewed periodically and updated if expectations 
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence 
and legal or other limits in the use of property, plant and equipment and investment properties.  
However, it is possible that future financial performance could be materially affected by changes in 
the estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above.  The amount and timing of 
recording the depreciation and amortization for any period would be affected by changes in these 
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factors and circumstances.  A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
and investment properties would increase the recorded depreciation and amortization and decrease 
noncurrent assets.

There was no change in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment 
properties in 2008 and 2007.  The carrying values of property, plant and equipment amounted to 
P8,274.9 million and P7,491.1 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 13).  
The carrying values of investment properties were P306.4 million and P214.1 million as of December 
31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 12).
 
Impairment of Goodwill.  The Jollibee Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an 
annual basis or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
may be impaired.  This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which 
the goodwill is allocated.  Estimating the value in use requires the Jollibee Group to make an estimate 
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount 
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.  Management has determined that 
goodwill is not impaired.

The carrying amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P3,186.4 million and 
P1,601.6 million, respectively (see Note 14).

Impairment of Other Nonfinancial Assets.  The Jollibee Group performs annual impairment review of 
non-financial assets (except goodwill) when certain impairment indicators are present.  Determining 
the fair value of assets, which requires the determination of future cash flows expected to be 
generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Jollibee Group 
to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial statements.  
Future events could cause the Jollibee Group to conclude that the assets are impaired.  Any resulting 
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial condition and performance.

The accumulated impairment losses on investment properties and property, plant and equipment 
amounted to P117.8 million and P116.0 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  As of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, the aggregate carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and 
investment properties amounted to P8,581.3 million and P7,705.2 million, respectively (see Notes 12 
and 13).

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation.  The present value of the pension obligations depends on 
a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.  These 
assumptions include, among others, discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and rate of 
salary increase.  Actual results that differ from the Jollibee Group’s assumptions are accumulated and 
amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded 
obligation in such future periods.

The assumption of the expected return on plan assets is determined on a uniform basis, taking into 
consideration the long-term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term 
investment returns.

The Jollibee Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.  It is the interest 
rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected 
to be required to settle the pension obligations.  In determining the appropriate discount rate, 
the Jollibee Group considers the interest rates on government bonds that are denominated in the 
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms 
of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.
While it is believed that the Jollibee Group’s assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant 
differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect pension 
and other pension obligations.

The accrued benefit liability as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P400.5 million and
P443.6 million, respectively.  The unrecognized net actuarial losses amounted to P53.3 million and
P20.0 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 26).

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets.  The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet 
date is reviewed and reduced to the extent that there are no longer sufficient taxable profits available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.  The Jollibee Group’s assessment on the 
recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of 
MCIT and NOLCO is based on the forecasted taxable income.  This forecast is based on past results and 
future expectations on revenue and expenses.  

Deferred tax assets amounted to P760.1 million and P874.2 million as of December 31, 2008 and 
2007, respectively (see Note 24).

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities.  The Jollibee Group carries certain financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments.  The 
significant components of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective 
evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates).  The amount of changes in fair 
value would differ if different valuation methodologies and assumptions are utilized.  Any changes in 
the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would directly affect profit and loss and equity.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are discussed in Note 32.

Provisions.  The Jollibee Group recognizes a provision for an obligation resulting from a past event 
when it has assessed that it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  These assessments 
are made based on available evidence, including the opinion of experts.  Future events and 
developments may result in changes in these assessments which may impact the financial condition 
and results of operations.

Provisions recognized for legal claims, restructuring costs and contingent payments on an acquisition, 
and others amount to P46.3 million and P57.5 million (including current portion) as of December 31, 
2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 17). 
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5. Segment Information

The Jollibee Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the 
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business 
unit that offers different products and serves different markets. 

• The food service segment is involved in the operations of QSR and the manufacture of food 
products to be sold to Jollibee Group-owned and franchised QSR outlets.

• The franchising segment is involved in the franchising of the Jollibee Group’s QSR store concepts.

• The leasing segment leases store sites mainly to the Jollibee Group’s independent franchisees. 

The Jollibee Group generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers at current market prices as 
if the sales or transfers were to third parties.  Those transfers are eliminated at the consolidation.
 
The Jollibee Group’s geographical segments are based on the location of the assets producing the 
revenues.  Sales to external customers disclosed in the geographical segments are based on the 
geographical location of the customers.
 
Business Segments
The following tables present certain information on revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities of the 
different business segments as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2008:
 
 2008
     Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Total
  (In Thousands)
Revenue from external 
 customers P41,558,956  P2,220,839  P111,764  P–  P43,891,559
Inter-segment revenue 5,770,314  302,665  232,087  (6,305,066 ) –
Segment revenue 47,329,270  2,523,504  343,851  (6,305,066 ) 43,891,559
Segment expenses (41,002,154 ) –  (201,642 ) –  (41,203,796 ) 
Other segment income 419,918  –  –  –  419,918
Segment result P6,747,034  P2,523,504  P142,209  (P6,305,066 ) 3,107,681

Interest income         208,464
Interest expense         (105,080 )
Income before income tax         3,211,065
Provision for income tax         (889,248 )
Net income         P2,321,817

(forward)

 2008
     Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Total
  (In Thousands)
Assets and Liabilities          
Segment assets P26,015,000  P–  P350,577  P–  P26,365,577
Deferred tax assets 722,031  –  38,093  –  760,124
Total assets P26,737,031  P–  P388,670  P–  P27,125,701

Segment Liabilities P10,070,347  P–  P238,511  P–  P10,308,858
Deferred tax liabilities –  –  –  –  72,370
Long-term debt - including 
 current portion  –  –  –  –  2,522,158
Income tax payable –  –  –  –  82,483
Total liabilities P10,070,347  P–  P238,511  P–  P12,985,869
 
Other segment information
Capital expenditures P2,910,776  P–  P7,498  P–  P2,918,274
Depreciation and 
 amortization 1,714,549  –  8,796  –  1,723,345
 
 2007
     Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Total
  (In Thousands)
Revenue from external 
 customers P36,338,859  P2,024,652  P333,420  P–  P38,696,931
Inter-segment revenue 4,178,741  257,865  305,210  (4,745,085 ) (3,269 )
Segment revenue 40,517,600  2,282,517  638,630  (4,745,085 ) 38,693,662
Segment expenses (35,594,902 ) –  (164,854 ) –  (35,759,756 )
Other segment income 113,589  –  –  –  113,589
Segment result P5,036,287  P2,282,517  P473,776  (P4,745,085 ) P3,047,495

Interest income         142,989
Interest expense         (55,469 )
Income before income tax         3,135,015
Income tax expense         (746,657 )
Net income         P2,388,358

Assets and Liabilities          
Segment assets P20,764,336  P–  P306,499  P–  P21,070,835
Deferred tax assets 793,594  –  80,573  –  874,167
Total assets P21,557,930  P–  P387,072  P–  P21,945,002

(forward)
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 2007
     Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Total
  (In Thousands)
Segment Liabilities P8,807,187  P–  P135,524  P–  P8,942,711
Deferred tax liabilities –  –  –  –  126,821
Long-term debt - including 
 current portion  –  –  –  –  143,408
Provision for income tax –  –  –  –  83,725
Total liabilities P8,807,187  P–  P135,524  P–  P9,296,665

Other segment information
Capital expenditures P2,050,911  P–  P5,088  P–  P2,055,999
Depreciation and 
 amortization 1,572,591  –  6,968  –  1,579,559
 
 2006
     Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Total
  (In Thousands)
Revenue from external 
 customers P32,015,218  P1,807,557  P94,388  P–  P33,917,163
Inter-segment revenue 4,391,401  240,729  132,332  (4,770,407 ) (5,945 )
Segment revenue 36,406,619  2,048,286  226,720  (4,770,407 ) 33,911,218
Segment expenses (36,239,852 ) –  (191,157 ) 4,932,538  (31,498,471 )
Other segment income 497,868  –  13,033  (121,285 ) 389,616
Segment result P664,635  P2,048,286  P48,596  P40,846  P2,802,363

Interest income         135,491
Interest expense         (80,408 )
Excess of fair value of 
 net assets over 
 acquisition cost 
 of a subsidiary          68,416
Equity in net loss of a 
 joint venture         (22,908 )
Income before income tax         2,902,954
Provision for income tax         (742,796 )
Net income         P2,160,158

Assets and Liabilities          
Segment assets P26,913,967  P–  P335,654  (P8,831,654 ) P18,417,967
Deferred tax assets 898,179  –  56,465  (104,257 ) 850,387
Total assets P27,812,146  P–  P392,119  (P8,935,911 ) P19,268,354

(forward)

 2006
     Food Service  Franchising  Leasing  Eliminations  Total
  (In Thousands)
Segment Liabilities P9,786,158  P–  P354,656  (P1,950,188 ) P8,190,626
Long-term debt - including 
 current portion  –  –  –  –  107,090
Income tax payable –  –  –  –  8,850
Total liabilities P9,786,158  P–  P354,656  (P1,950,188 ) P8,306,566

Other segment information
Capital expenditures P1,920,244  P–  P–  P–  P1,920,244
Depreciation 
 and amortization 1,568,320  –  5,525  –  1,573,845

Geographical Segments
The following table presents revenue, segment assets and capital information of the Jollibee Group’s 
geographical segments: 
     Philippines  International  Eliminations  Total
  (In Thousands)
2008:
 Revenue P38,152,337  P5,739,222  P–  P43,891,559
 Segment assets 20,168,588  6,957,113  –  27,125,701
 Capital expenditures 1,429,459  1,488,815  –  2,918,274

2007:        
 Revenue 35,179,857  3,513,805  –  38,693,662
 Segment assets 18,421,431  2,649,404  –  21,070,835
 Capital expenditures 1,806,309  249,690  –  2,055,999

2006:        
 Revenue 33,954,872  4,726,753  (4,770,407 ) 33,911,218
 Segment assets 24,275,590  2,992,434  (8,850,057 ) 18,417,967
 Capital expenditures 1,436,539  483,705  –  1,920,244 

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

     2008  2007
 Cash on hand and in banks P3,114,145,957  P2,627,756,883
 Short-term deposits 3,744,703,099  2,948,186,210
     P6,858,849,056  P5,575,943,093
 
Cash in banks earn interest at the respective savings or special demand deposit rates.  

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of up to three months, depending on the immediate 
cash requirements of the Jollibee Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
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7. Receivables

This account consists of:

     2008  2007
 Trade  P1,882,203,843  P1,900,987,648
 Less allowance for impairment loss 77,063,380  82,641,005
     1,805,140,463  1,818,346,643
 Advances to employees 73,547,173  66,854,998
 Current portion of:    
  Employee car plan 44,266,499  36,942,306
  Receivable from Meralco (Note 15) 10,135,536  10,963,731
 Others  7,610,728  9,343,040
     P1,940,700,399  P1,942,450,718

Trade receivables are non interest-bearing and are generally on 7-14 days term.

Advances to employees and the current portion of employee car plan and receivable from Meralco are 
expected to be collectible within the next financial year.

The movements in the allowance for impairment loss for trade receivables as of December 31 are as follows:

     2008  2007
 Beginning P82,641,005  P57,252,238
 Provision  34,876,434  25,388,767
 Reversal (38,273,611 ) –
 Write-off (2,180,448 ) –
     P77,063,380  P82,641,005

The provisions in 2008 and 2007 resulted from specific impairment assessments performed by the 
Parent Company and its subsidiaries.  
 

8. Inventories

This account consists of:

     2008  2007
 At cost:    
  Food supplies and processed inventories P2,353,512,815  P1,318,587,677
  Packaging, store and other supplies 176,028,890  103,310,224
  Novelty items 14,075,001  7,269,053
     2,543,616,706  1,429,166,954
 
 (forward)

     2008  2007
 At net realizable value:    
  Novelty items P183,847,706  P100,241,215
  Packaging, store and other supplies  –  100,019,852
     183,847,706  200,261,067

 Total inventories at lower of cost and net realizable value P2,727,464,412  P1,629,428,021

The cost of inventories carried at net realizable value amounted to P223.7 million and P214.4 million 
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

 
9. Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

     2008  2007
 Deposits to suppliers P417,005,344  P349,922,843
 Prepaid expenses 395,817,649  222,275,983
 Refundable deposits 196,989,193  83,381,117
 Others - net of allowance for impairment 
  loss of P2.2 million in 2008 and 2007 487,908,274  605,678,678
     P1,497,720,460  P1,261,258,621

10. Investments in Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following 
wholly owned and majority owned subsidiaries:

  Percentage
 Country of  of Ownership
     Incorporation Principal Activities 2008 2007 2006
Fresh N’ Famous Foods, Inc. (Fresh N’ Famous)(a)  Philippines Food service 100 100 100
• Chowking Food Corporation USA(g) United States 
        of America (USA) Holding company 100 100 100
Freemont Foods Corporation Philippines Food service 100 100 100
RRBH   Philippines Holding company 100 100 100
• Red Ribbon Bakeshop, Inc. (RRBI)(b) Philippines Food service 100 100 100
• Red Ribbon Bakeshop, Inc. (RRBI USA)(b) USA Food service 100 100 100
Vismin Foods Corporation (Vismin)(i) Philippines Food service – 100 100
Zenith Foods Corporation (Zenith)(i) Philippines Food service 100 100 100

(forward)
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  Percentage
 Country of  of Ownership
     Incorporation Principal Activities 2008 2007 2006
Grandworth Resources Corporation (Grandworth) Philippines Leasing 100 100 100
• Adgraphix, Inc.(d) Philippines Digital printing 60 60 60
Donut Magic Phils., Inc. (Donut Magic)(c) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
Ice Cream Copenhagen Phils., Inc. (ICCP)(c) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
Mary’s Foods Corporation (Mary’s)(c) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
Jollibee Foods Corporation USA USA Holding company 100 100 100
Honeybee Foods Corporation (Honeybee) USA Food service 100 100 100
• Tokyo Teriyaki Corporation(e) USA Food service 100 100 90
Jollibee Worldwide Pte. Ltd. (Jollibee Worldwide) Singapore Holding company 100 100 100
• Jollibee Worldwide Pte. Ltd.- 
 Regional Headquarters      
• Beijing New Hongzhuangyuan  Peoples’ Republic
 F&B Management Co., Ltd. (Hongzhuangyuan)(h)    of China (PRC) Food service 100 – –
• Hangzhou Yong He Doujiang Foods 
 and Beverage Co., Ltd. (Hangzhou Yong He)(h) PRC Food service 100 – –
• Tianjin Yong He King Foods and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 – –
• Kuai Le Feng Food & Beverage 
 (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.(h) PRC Food service 100 100 –
• Beijing Yong He King Foods 
 and Beverage Co., Ltd.(h) PRC Food service 100 100 85
• Shenzhen Yong He King Foods 
 and Beverage Co., Ltd. (h) PRC Food service 100 100 85
• Hangzhou Yongtong Dinner - Service Co., Ltd. (h) PRC Food service 100 100 85
• Hangzhou Yonghong Foods & Beverage Co., Ltd.(h) PRC Food service 100 100 85
• Shanghai Yong He King Co., Ltd. 
 (Shanghai Yong He)(h) PRC Food service 100 100 85
• Wuhan Yongchang Food and Beverage Co., Ltd.(h) PRC Food service 100 100 85
• Jollibee International (BVI) Ltd. (JIBL)(f) British Virgin 
        Islands (BVI) Holding company 100 100 100
 – Jollibee Vietnam Corporation Ltd.(h) Vietnam Food service 100 100 100
 – Shanghai Chunlu Co. Ltd.(h) PRC Food service 100 100 100
 – PT Chowking Indonesia(h) Indonesia Food service 100 100 100
 – Jollibee (Hong Kong) Limited(h) Hong Kong Food service 85 85 85
  • Hanover Holdings Limited (Hanover)(h) Hong Kong Food service 100 100 100
 – Belmont Enterprises Ventures Limited (Belmont)(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
  • Yonghe Holdings Co., Ltd.(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
   - Centenary Ventures Limited(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
   - Colossus Global Limited(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
   - Granite Management Limited(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
   - Cosmic Resources Limited(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
   - Shanghai Belmont Enterprises 
      Management and Adviser Co., Ltd.(h) PRC Business management 
        service 100 100 85
(forward)

  • All Great Resources Limited(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
   - Eastpower Resources Limited(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
     • Shanghai Yongjue Foods & Beverage Co., Ltd(h) PRC Food service 100 100 85
   - Eaglerock Development Limited(h) BVI Holding company 100 100 85
   - Gladstone Company Limited(h) BVI Dormant 100 100 85

(a) On December 29, 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the merger of Fresh N’ Famous, 
Greenwich and Baker Fresh.

(b) Indirectly owned through Red Ribbon.
(c) On June 18, 2004, the stockholders of the Jollibee Group approved the Plan of Merger of the three dormant companies, 

namely: Donut Magic, ICCP and Mary’s with the Parent Company.  The application for merger with the SEC, however, 
remains outstanding as of December 31, 2008. 

(d) Indirectly owned through Grandworth.
(e) Indirectly owned through Honeybee. 
(f) Indirectly owned through Jollibee Worldwide.
(g) Indirectly owned through Fresh N’ Famous.
(h) Indirectly owned through JIBL.
(i) On February 27, 2008, the SEC approved the merger between Zenith and Vismin effective January 1, 2008, with Zenith 

as the surviving entity.

Acquisition/Establishment of New Subsidiaries

Hongzhuangyuan 

On August 23, 2008, Jollibee Worldwide, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent Company, acquired 
100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Hongzhuangyuan, which operates the Hongzhuangyuan 
system in PRC, for a total acquisition cost of  P1,706.1 million.

The acquisition cost of  P1,706.1 million was provisionally allocated to the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of Hongzhuangyuan are as follows:
 
     Fair Market   Carrying
     Value  Amount
 Cash and cash equivalents  P182,049,407   P182,049,407
 Inventories 3,103,119  3,103,119
 Receivables  483,296  483,296
 Prepaid and other current assets 57,747,358  57,747,358
 Property, plant and equipment - net 185,401,252  172,884,268
 Noncurrent assets 11,451,012  11,451,012
 Total identifiable assets 440,235,444  427,718,460
 Less:  
 Accounts payable  29,335,714  29,335,714
 Accrued liabilities 59,446,880  59,446,880
 Other liabilities 196,821,790  196,821,790
 Total identifiable liabilities 285,604,384  285,604,384
 Net assets 154,631,060  P142,114,076
 Goodwill arising from acquisition (see Note 14) 1,551,465,536 
 Total consideration  P1,706,096,596
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The net cash outflow on the acquisition are as follows:

       Amount
 Cash paid   P1,706,096,596
 Less cash acquired from subsidiary   182,049,407
 Net cash outflow   P1,524,047,189

Hangzhou Yong He

On August 12, 2008, the Shanghai Yong He entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Hangzhou 
Yong He, a third party PRC company operating a fast food business, to purchase the latter’s lease right, 
trade name and other intellectual properties of its eight existing stores in the province of Hangzhou, 
except for the equipment used in the stores which are owned by another company.  The purchase 
consideration amounted to RMB1.0 million or P6.9 million.
 
The equipment used in the eight stores are owned by Hangzhou Huadong Xianzhi Equipment 
Marketing Yunbin Machine Equipment Operation Department (Hangzhou Huadong).  Accordingly, in 
relation to the Asset Purchase Agreement, the Shanghai Yong He entered into an Equipment Purchase 
Agreement with Hangzhou Huadong to purchase the store equipment for a total consideration of 
RMB16.0 million or P110.9 million.  Pursuant to the Equipment Purchase Agreement, ownership of the 
store equipment will be transferred to and will be accepted by Shanghai Yong He only upon fulfillment 
by Hangzhou Yonghe of the following conditions for each store:

a. Assignment of the lease contracts to the Shanghai Yong He, renewed for at least another five 
years based on the agreed rent fees; and

b. Transfer of all related business licenses and certificates to the Shanghai Yong He.

As of December 31, 2008, lease contracts and store equipment of three stores have been transferred 
to the Shanghai Yong He for a consideration of RMB4.8 million.  The Shanghai Yong He also made a 
deposit of RMB1.6 million which will be applied as payment for the last store to be transferred.

Pursuant to the agreements, the Shanghai Yong He, however, will allow Hangzhou Yonghe to continue 
the operations of its existing franchise contracts with third parties until the termination of the 
contracts in 2013.  The terms and conditions to continue the operations of the franchise contracts, 
however, are still under negotiation.

The purchase agreements are accounted for as business combinations.  The total consideration paid 
of RMB4.8 million or P33.3 million, was initially recorded as goodwill pending the completion of the 
valuation of the identified assets at the date of acquisition.

Baker Fresh

On September 29, 2006, the Parent Company acquired the 50% ownership interest of Delifrance Asia 
Ltd. (DAL) in Baker Fresh, a joint venture with the Jollibee Group in 2005 (see Note 11), for a Singapore 
dollar (SG$)1.  As part of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Parent Company also converted its 

receivables from Baker Fresh totaling P141.1 million into additional paid-in capital of Baker Fresh.  Of 
the total receivables converted to additional paid-in capital of Baker Fresh, P84.7 million forms part of 
the total consideration.  As a result of the acquisition, Baker Fresh became a wholly owned subsidiary 
of the Jollibee Group.

The total consideration consists of the following:
 
 Conversion of receivables   P84,699,123
 Cash paid (SG$1)   32
 Total consideration   P84,699,155
 
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Baker Fresh as of the date of acquisition and 
the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were:
 
     Fair Market   Carrying
     Value  Amount
 Cash and cash equivalents P25,617,711  P25,617,711
 Receivables 19,809,893  19,809,893
 Inventories 19,706,006  19,706,006
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,413,664  5,413,664
 Property and equipment 82,434,400  71,019,627
 Deferred tax assets 70,803,148  –
 Other noncurrent assets 22,164,013  22,164,013
 Total identifiable assets 245,948,835  163,730,914
 Less:  
 Accounts payable and other current liabilities 63,472,332  63,472,332
 Due to related parties 6,789,896  6,789,896
 Operating lease payable 14,679,538  14,679,538
 Accrued benefit cost 4,467,909  4,467,909
 Deferred tax liability 3,424,432  –
 Total identifiable liabilities 92,834,107  89,409,675
 Net assets 153,114,728  P74,321,239
 Negative goodwill arising from acquisition 68,415,573 
 Total consideration P84,699,155

The negative goodwill from the acquisition of Baker Fresh amounting to P68.4 million was recognized 
under “Excess of fair value of net assets over acquisition cost of a subsidiary” account in the 2006 
consolidated statement of income.

The cash inflows on acquisition in 2006 were as follows:

 Cash paid   (P32 )
 Less cash acquired from the subsidiary   25,617,711
       P25,617,679

Jo
lli

be
e 

Fo
od

s 
Co

rp
or

ati
on

59



Notes to Financial Statements
Acquisition of Minority Interest

Belmont

On June 18, 2007, the Parent Company through its international subsidiary, JIBL, acquired the 
15% interest of Academy Resources Ltd. in Belmont for P413.7 million.  The acquisition resulted to 
Belmont becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of JIBL.

The difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying value of the minority interest at the 
date of acquisition amounting to P375.7 million was recognized under “Excess of the acquisition cost 
over the carrying value of minority interests,” a separate component of stockholders’ equity in the 
consolidated balance sheets.
 
Greenwich

On January 13, 2006, the Parent Company acquired the 20% interest of Greenfoods Franchising, Inc. 
in Greenwich for P384.0 million.  The acquisition resulted to Greenwich becoming a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Parent Company.

The difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying value of the minority interest at the date 
of acquisition amounting to P168.3 million was recognized as “Excess of the acquisition cost over the 
carrying value of minority interests,” a separate component of stockholders’ equity in the consolidated 
balance sheets.

11. Investment in Shares of Stock

On July 18, 2008, the Parent Company, through its international subsidiary Jollibee Worldwide, 
acquired 12% equity share in Chow Fun Holdings, LLC for $0.9 million or P41.9 million.

12. Investment Properties

The movements in this account follow:

 2008
     Land and   Buildings
     Land   and Building
     Improvements   Improvements   Total
  (In Thousands)
 Cost:      
  Beginning balance P252,501  P208,860  P461,361
  Disposals (21,535 ) (2,645 ) (24,180 )
  Reclassifications/Transfers (Note 13) 61,264  70,139  131,403
  Ending balance P292,230  P276,354  P568,584
 
 (forward)

 2008
     Land and   Buildings
     Land   and Building
     Improvements   Improvements   Total
  (In Thousands)
 Accumulated depreciation:      
  Beginning balance P–  P201,790  P201,790
  Depreciation –  5,535  5,535
  Disposals –  (2,645 ) (2,645 )
  Reclassifications/Transfers (Note 13) –  14,028  14,028
  Ending balance –  218,708  218,708
 Accumulated impairment losses:      
  Beginning balance 45,455  –  45,455
  Reversal of impairment (1,951 ) –  (1,951 )
  Ending balance 43,504  –  43,504
 Net book value P248,726   P57,646  P306,372

 

 2007
     Land and   Buildings
     Land   and Building
     Improvements   Improvements   Total
  (In Thousands)
 Cost:      
  Beginning and ending balance P252,501  P208,860  P461,361
 Accumulated depreciation:      
  Beginning balance –  198,359  198,359
  Depreciation –  3,431  3,431
  Ending balance –  201,790  201,790
 Accumulated impairment losses:      
  Beginning balance 79,687  –  79,687
  Provision for impairment (see Note 22) 27,221  –  27,221
  Reversal of impairment (61,453 ) –  (61,453 )
  Ending balance 45,455  –  45,455
 Net book value P207,046   P7,070  P214,116

The allowance for impairment in value of land amounting to P43.5 million and P45.5 million as of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, represents the excess of the carrying values over the 
estimated recoverable amount of non income-generating investment properties.  The estimated 
recoverable amount is the estimated selling price less cost to sell.

The cost of fully depreciated buildings still being leased out by the Jollibee Group amounted to 
P176.21 million and P172.52 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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The parcels of land have aggregate fair values of P1,194.69 million as of December 31, 2008 as determined by an independent appraiser.  The fair value represents the amount at which the assets can be exchanged 
between a knowledgeable, willing seller and a knowledgeable, willing buyer in an arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

Rental income derived from income-generating properties amounted to P68.56 million, P58.35 million and P52.51 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  

Direct operating costs relating to the investment properties that generated rental income recognized under “Cost of sales” and “General and administrative expenses” account amounted to P42.07 million, P41.87 
million and P46.66 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Direct operating costs relating to the investment properties that did not generate rental income recognized under “Cost of sales” and “General and administrative expenses” account amounted to P4.8 million, P1.3 
million and P1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

13. Property, Plant and Equipment

The details of property and equipment are as follows:

 2008
       Plant and
       Buildings,
       Commercial    Office, Store
     Land and  Condominium  Leasehold  and Food
     Land  Units and  Rights and  Processing  Furniture and  Transportation  Construction
     Improvements  Improvements  Improvements  Equipment  Fixtures  Equipment  in Progress  Total
 (In Thousands)
Cost:                
  Beginning balance P732,072  P894,607  P6,063,437  P6,376,953  P430,496  P277,457  P174,999  P14,950,021
  Additions –  31,819  1,110,515  1,125,117  87,712  40,155  522,956  2,918,274
  Retirements and disposals –  (171 ) (274,022 ) (305,448 ) (36,055 ) (18,802 ) (2,052 ) (636,550 )
  Reclassifications (61,157 ) (15,489 ) 212,667  165,942  21,578  19,195  (487,054 ) (144,318 )
  Ending balance 670,915  910,766  7,112,597  7,362,564  503,731  318,005  208,849  17,087,427
Accumulated depreciation:                
  Beginning balance –  540,455  2,698,145  3,662,225  307,956  179,682  –  7,388,463
  Depreciation and amortization –  52,906  770,537  793,885  60,259  45,758  –  1,723,345
  Retirements and disposals –  (171 ) (208,786 ) (96,228 ) (22,791 ) (15,162 ) –  (343,138 )
  Reclassifications –  (8,014 ) (111,905 ) 66,818  13,841  8,793  –  (30,467 )
  Ending balance –  585,176  3,147,991  4,426,700  359,265  219,071  –  8,738,203
Accumulated impairment loss                
  Beginning balance –  –  49,740  –  –  –  20,773  70,513
  Impairment loss –  –  –  –  –  –  3,793  3,793
  Ending balance –  –  49,740  –  –  –  24,566  74,306
Net book value P670,915  P325,590  P3,914,866  P2,935,864  P144,466  P98,934  P184,283  P8,274,918
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 2007
       Plant and
       Buildings,
       Commercial    Office, Store
     Land and  Condominium  Leasehold  and Food
     Land  Units and  Rights and  Processing  Furniture and  Transportation  Construction
     Improvements  Improvements  Improvements  Equipment  Fixtures  Equipment  in Progress  Total
 (In Thousands)
Cost:                
  Beginning balance P724,703  P795,597  P5,750,717  P5,754,887  P501,799  P259,196  P299,426  P14,086,325
  Additions 200  53,770  368,014  938,634  28,484  52,883  614,014  2,055,999
  Retirements and disposals –  (139 ) (587,480 ) (132,468 ) (32,358 ) (5,456 ) (24,862 ) (782,763 )
  Reclassifications 7,169  45,379  532,186  (184,100 ) (67,429 ) (29,166 ) (713,579 ) (409,540 )
  Ending balance 732,072  894,607  6,063,437  6,376,953  430,496  277,457  174,999  14,950,021
Accumulated depreciation:                
  Beginning balance –  408,803  2,790,969  3,298,994  329,315  136,046  –  6,964,127
  Depreciation and amortization –  65,061  631,818  778,942  53,591  46,714  –  1,576,126
  Retirements and disposals –  (42 ) (579,852 ) (132,084 ) (30,809 ) (1,007 ) –  (743,794 )
  Reclassifications –  66,633  (144,790 ) (283,627 ) (44,141 ) (2,071 ) –  (407,996 )
  Ending balance –  540,455  2,698,145  3,662,225  307,956  179,682  –  7,388,463
Accumulated impairment loss                
  Beginning balance –  –  49,740  –  –  –  15,685  65,425
  Impairment loss (Note 22) –  –  –  –  –  –  5,088  5,088
  Ending balance –  –  49,740  –  –  –  20,773  70,513
Net book value P732,072  P354,152  P3,315,552  P2,714,728  P122,540  P97,775  P154,226  P7,491,045

The cost of fully depreciated assets still in use by the Jollibee Group amounted to P4,086.9 million and P3,871.4 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

14. Goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations are allocated as follows:

 Red Ribbon Belmont Hongzhuangyuan Hangzhou Yonghe Total
Balance at December 31, 2007 P1,172,590,156 P429,016,116 P– P– P1,601,606,272
Additions (see Note 10) – – 1,551,465,536 33,281,274 1,584,746,810

Balance at December 31, 2008 P1,172,590,156 P429,016,116 P1,551,465,536 P33,281,274 P3,186,353,082

 
Impairment testing of goodwill
The recoverable amounts of goodwill from Red Ribbon and Belmont have been determined based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior management 
covering a ten-year period.  The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 18%.  

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions: a) gross margin, b) discount rate and c) growth rate.

Notes to Financial Statements
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15. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

     2008  2007
 Refundable deposits P648,899,059  P504,555,973
 Deposit for acquisition of real property 375,250,000  375,250,000
 Deferred rent expense 59,427,921  61,167,252
 Noncurrent portion of:    
  Employee car plan 74,464,709  70,993,342
  Receivable from Meralco 8,769,643  17,134,633
 AFS financial assets 34,890,714  46,164,343
 Deferred compensation - employee car plan 17,249,918  15,765,087
 Others - net of allowance for impairment loss
  of P144.7 million in 2008 and 2007 248,755,743  226,166,454
     P1,467,707,707  P1,317,197,084

Refundable deposits represent deposits for operating leases entered into by the Jollibee Group as 
lessee.  The refundable deposits are recoverable from the lessors at the end of the lease term.  The 
refundable deposits are presented at amortized cost in accordance with PAS 39.  The discount rates 
used range from 5% to 22% in 2008 and 6% to 21% in 2007.  The difference between the fair value at 
initial recognition and the notional amount of the refundable deposits is charged to “Deferred rent 
expense” account and amortized on straight-line basis over the lease terms under PAS 17.

The “Employee car plan” account is in relation to the Jollibee Group’s car plan benefits and are 
presented at amortized cost in accordance with PAS 39.  The difference between the fair value at 
initial recognition and the notional amount of the advances is charged to “Deferred compensation - 
employee car plan” account, which is amortized using the effective interest method over the credit 
period.  The discount rates used range from 5% to 8% in 2008 and 4% to 17% in 2007.

The receivable from Meralco arises from a refund scheme agreed upon by Meralco and the Energy 
Regulatory Commission.  Under the scheme, the refund may be received through postdated checks or 
as a fixed monthly credit to bills with cash option.  The Jollibee Group intends to recover the refund 
through receipt of quarterly postdated checks of equal amount over 5.25 years until 2010.  The 
receivable was discounted using an effective interest rate of 12%.
 
The movements in unamortized deferred interest income are as follows:

 2008
     Refundable  Employee  Receivable from
     Deposits  Car Plan  Meralco
 Beginning P98,465,525  P15,765,087  P4,889,197
 Additions 10,778,615  12,168,989  –
 Interest accretion (12,695,120 ) (9,541,921 ) (2,584,289 )
 Disposals/pre-terminations (3,534,465 ) (1,142,237 ) –
     P93,014,555  P17,249,918  P2,304,908

 2007
     Refundable  Employee  Receivable from
     Deposits  Car Plan  Meralco
 Beginning P97,504,840  P9,896,154  P8,770,458
 Additions 7,501,543  13,343,876  –
 Interest accretion (6,085,395 ) (4,603,373 ) (3,728,712 )
 Disposals/pre-terminations (455,463 ) (2,871,570 ) (152,549 )
     P98,465,525  P15,765,087  P4,889,197

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, other noncurrent assets include AFS financial assets representing 
investments in shares of stock and club shares amounting to P28.3 million and P6.6 million, and P39.6 
million and P6.6 million, respectively.  The Jollibee Group recognized P11.0 million unrealized loss and 
P22.4 million unrealized gain from fair value adjustments in investments for the years 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  As there were no disposals in 2008 and 2007, no amount was taken out of stockholders’ 
equity in both years.

16. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

     2008  2007
 Trade  P3,508,731,554  P2,257,255,629
 Accruals for:  
  Salaries, wages and allowances  874,531,272  902,638,625
  Local and other taxes 764,422,261  596,270,170
  Advertising and promotions 435,456,652  364,343,928
  Rent  222,682,237  164,150,137
  Retention payable 46,893,647  112,288,700
 Short-term loans  407,197,154  157,461,779
 Dividends payable 339,160,893  693,296,023
 Output VAT 194,610,969  266,842,771
 Deposits 186,157,262  186,893,865
 Others  1,849,122,150  1,703,282,843
     P8,828,966,051  P7,404,724,470

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a 30-day term.
 
Short-term loans consist of secured and unsecured bank loans of Belmont.

In 2008, secured bank loans amounting to RMB25.03 million, equivalent to P173.5 million, are fully 
guaranteed by the Parent Company.
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In 2007, the secured bank loan was collateralized by a pledge of Belmont’s bank deposits of 
US$500,000, equivalent to P20.6 million.  The secured bank loans matured on January 16, 2008.  The 
pledged bank deposits earned interest at the average bank deposit rates of 2.9%.  Interest on the 
secured bank loans was charged on the outstanding balance at a rate of 7.3% per annum in 2008 and 
5.4% per annum in 2007.

The unsecured bank loans are short-term loans availed from banks with maturity of one year or less.  
The interest rate on unsecured bank loans is 6.4% and 5.8% in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Accruals, dividends payable, deposits and output VAT are expected to be settled within the next 
financial year.

Other current liabilities include accruals for economic value added compensation, building 
improvements, stale checks and gift certificates issued to customers of the Jollibee Group and other 
liabilities relating to store operations.  These liabilities are normally settled within the next financial 
year.

17. Provisions

 2008 2007
       Restructuring
     Legal Claims   Costs  Others  Total  
Balance at 
 beginning of year P32,112,104  P6,156,799  P19,237,291  P57,506,194  P75,344,101
Additions during 
 the year 18,259,410  –  2,212,310  20,471,720  –
Payments during 
 the year (21,102,210 ) (4,925,464 ) (5,641,251 ) (31,668,925 ) (17,837,907 )
Balance at 
 end of year 29,269,304  1,231,335  15,808,350  46,308,989  57,506,194
Less current portion –  1,231,335  15,808,350  17,039,685  25,394,090
     P29,269,304  P–  P–  P29,269,304  P32,112,104

The provisions for legal claims include estimates of legal services, settlement amount and other 
costs on claims made against the Jollibee Group.  Other information on the claims is not disclosed 
as this may prejudice the Jollibee Group’s position as regards to these claims.  Management, after 
consultations with its legal counsel, believes that the provision recognized is sufficient to meet the 
costs related to the claims.

The provision for restructuring costs relates to the Parent Company’s Cost Improvement Program 
to improve the quality of services and reduce the costs of backroom operations for its various QSR 
systems.

 

18. Long-term Debt
 
     2008  2007
 Peso-denominated:    
  Loan 1 P–  P8,181,819
  Loan 2 –  2,727,270
 US dollar-denominated:    
  Loan 3 44,029,133  55,728,000
  Loan 4 74,242,207  76,771,138
 CNY-denominated -     
  Loan 5 2,403,886,894  
     2,522,158,234  143,408,227
 Less current portion  37,769,129  40,549,919
     P2,484,389,105  P102,858,308

Peso-denominated loans of RRBI: 
Loan 1 consists of long-term loans acquired from a local bank in June 2005 with interest rates of 9% 
and 11.75%.  The principals are payable in 11 quarterly installments commencing on December 16, 
2005 up to May 2, 2008, the date of maturity.

Loan 2 consists of a long-term loan acquired from a local bank in May 2005 amounting to P15.0 million 
with an interest rate of 9.75%.  The principal is payable in 11 quarterly installments commencing on 
November 4, 2005 up to May 2, 2008, the date of maturity.

US dollar-denominated loans of RRBI USA:
Loan 3 consists of a 3-year loan acquired from a foreign bank in December 2007 amounting to US$1.35 
million with interest rate of 6.50%.  The principal is payable in 36 monthly installments commencing 
on January 17, 2008 up to December 17, 2010, the date of maturity.  

Loan 4 consists of a 5-year loan acquired from a foreign bank in December 2007 amounting to 
US$1.9 million with an interest rate of 6.50%.  The principal is payable in 60 monthly installments 
commencing on January 1, 2008 up to January 1, 2013, the date of maturity.  

CNY-denominated loan of the Parent Company:
On September 8, 2008, the Parent Company entered into a Synthetic Credit Facility Agreement 
with several financial institutions to finance its investments in the People’s Republic of China.  The 
agreement covers a three-year loan denominated in RMB amounting to CNY700 million at fixed 
interest rates for the Parent Company and at 2.25% above Libor floating rate for the lenders.  The 
difference between the rates is covered by a notional swap subject to the same 2002 ISDA Master 
Agreement.
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Loan 5 consists of Tranches A and B for CNY350 million each.  On September 26, 2008, the Parent 
Company drew the full amount of Tranche A at 6.85% fixed interest rate using CNY6.82:1USD as initial 
exchange rate.  

The loan is payable in full in US dollar using the spot rate five business days before September 8, 2011.
 
As of December 31, 2008, the long-term debt amounted to P2,522.2 million as follows:
 
 Principal   P2,546,768,666
 Less unamortized debt issue cost   24,610,432
       P2,522,158,234

The repayment schedule of the outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2008 follows:
 
Year    Loan 3  Loan 4  Loan 5  Total
2009   P21,361,618  P16,407,511  P–  P37,769,129
2010   22,667,515  17,506,325  –  40,173,840
2011   –  18,678,781  2,428,497,326  2,447,176,107
2012   –  19,929,745  –  19,929,745
2013   –  1,719,845  –  1,719,845
     P44,029,133  P74,242,207  P2,428,497,326  P2,546,768,666
 
 

19. Stockholders’ Equity

a. Capital Stock
 
 The movements in the number of shares in 2008 and 2007 follows:

 Number of Shares
     2008  2007
 Authorized - P1 par value 1,450,000,000  1,450,000,000
 
 Issued:    
  Balance at beginning of year 1,032,129,882  1,022,173,029
  Issuances 5,866,309  9,956,853
  Balance at end of year 1,037,996,191  1,032,129,882
 Subscribed:    
  Balance at beginning of year 2,009,297  2,009,297
  Subscriptions 5,866,309  9,956,853
  Issuances (5,866,309 ) (9,956,853 )
  Balance at end of year 2,009,297  2,009,297
     1,040,005,488  1,034,139,179

b. Treasury Shares

 Number of Shares
     2008  2007
 Common stock held in treasury (Note 27):    
  Balance at beginning of year 16,692,150  22,734,028
  Re-issuances for stock purchase exercised (244,810 ) (6,041,878 )
  Balance at end of year 16,447,340  16,692,150
 

Treasury shares were re-issued to cover the stock purchase rights exercised by the employee 
participants in the Jollibee Group’s Tandem Stock Purchase and Option Plan II (see Note 27).

c. Retained Earnings

 On November 28, 2008, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of P0.48 a share in 
favor of the stockholders of record as of November 28, 2008, payable on December 18, 2008.  The 
BOD also approved on April 14, 2008 the declaration of cash dividends of P0.30 a share in favor of 
stockholders of record as of May 2, 2008.  This was paid on May 28, 2008.

 
 On November 28, 2007, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of P0.46 a share in 

favor of the stockholders of record as of December 14, 2007, payable on January 4, 2008.  The 
BOD also approved on April 11, 2007 the declaration of cash dividends of P0.34 a share in favor of 
stockholders of record as of April 27, 2007.  This was paid on May 24, 2007.

 The unappropriated retained earnings is restricted for the payment of dividends to the extent of: 
(a) the undistributed net earnings of the subsidiaries amounting to P1,652.2 million and P1,132.61 
million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively; and (b) cost of common shares held in 
treasury amounting to P180.5 million and P183.3 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.

 
 

20. Royalty and Franchise Fees

The Parent Company and four of its subsidiaries have existing Royalty and Franchise Agreements 
with independent franchisees for the latter to operate QSR outlets under the “Jollibee,” “Chowking,” 
“Greenwich,” “Delifrance,” “Yonghe King” and “Red Ribbon” concepts and trade names.  In 
consideration thereof, the franchisees agree to pay franchise fees and monthly royalty fees equivalent 
to certain percentages of the franchisees’ net sales.

The Jollibee Group also charges the franchisees a share in the network advertising and promotional 
activities.  These are also based on certain percentages of the franchisees’ net sales.
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21. Cost of Sales

This account consists of:

     2008  2007  2006
 Cost of inventories P20,867,044,942  P17,878,964,134  P15,287,365,939
 Personnel costs:      
  Salaries, wages and benefits 5,428,599,202  4,588,476,833  3,724,283,110
  Retirement benefits (Note 26) 85,298,371  108,281,404  47,287,480
 Rent (Note 30) 2,751,207,602  2,192,579,879  2,005,199,365
 Electricity and water 1,862,476,746  1,746,714,091  1,616,880,563
 Depreciation and amortization 
  (see Notes 12 and 13) 1,570,869,765  1,376,155,592  1,364,645,995
 Supplies 1,053,362,489  935,052,357  700,409,592
 Freight  576,891,935  432,547,827  977,050,733
 Repairs and maintenance 399,622,914  437,468,866  358,305,578
 Security and janitorial 217,615,854  195,509,983  139,120,211
 Communication 107,192,628  92,885,415  54,324,887
 Professional fees 90,893,405  69,296,351  58,202,996
 Entertainment, amusement 
  and recreation (EAR) 19,059,695  17,434,361  12,293,301
 Others  750,038,576  525,245,352  573,362,297
     P35,780,174,124  P30,596,612,445  P26,918,732,047
 
 

22. Expenses

This account consists of:

     2008  2007  2006
 General and administrative expenses P4,295,692,017  P3,985,019,306  P3,743,488,260
 Advertising and promotions 
  (see Note 20) 1,062,410,392  1,106,308,347  829,241,413
 Provisions 65,519,274  71,815,450  7,008,773
     P5,423,621,683  P5,163,143,103  P4,579,738,446

The general and administrative expenses consist of:

     2008  2007  2006
 Personnel costs:      
  Salaries, wages and benefits P1,976,108,533  P1,894,832,515  P1,940,051,486
  Stock options expense 85,654,300  84,895,128  32,008,199
  Retirement benefits (Note 26) 60,393,611  72,537,479  49,834,864
 
 (forward)

     2008  2007  2006
 Professional fee P429,327,973  P203,740,268  P62,542,529
 Taxes and licenses 538,841,273  303,222,981  292,386,861
 Transportation and travel 347,142,269  155,562,358  127,084,481
 Depreciation and amortization 158,009,998  203,403,281  209,198,762
 Rent (see Note 30) 151,548,685  198,424,514  131,980,154
 Communication 68,528,787  58,939,755  53,435,433
 Supplies 57,711,424  73,551,598  54,229,829
 Electricity and water 53,597,374  69,884,621  73,428,361
 EAR   47,234,312  42,493,374  28,835,754
 Training 45,269,836  26,814,833  35,700,145
 Security and janitorial 43,695,410  34,400,596  32,543,982
 Donation 42,457,680  30,000,000  –
 Repairs and maintenance 34,754,003  60,345,187  57,688,153
 Insurance 10,243,369  22,961,799  26,160,455
 Others  145,173,180  449,009,019  536,378,812
     P4,295,692,017  P3,985,019,306  P3,743,488,260

 
The provisions consist of:

     2008  2007  2006
 Impairment in value of:      
  Receivables and inventories 
   (Notes 7 and 8) P61,726,457  P39,507,137  P7,008,773
  Property, plant and equipment 
   and investment properties 
   (Notes 12 and 13) 3,792,817  32,308,313  –
     P65,519,274  P71,815,450  P7,008,773
 
 

23. Finance Income (Charges)

These accounts consist of:

     2008  2007  2006
 Interest income:   
  Money market placements P127,765,395  P104,285,248  P71,860,068
  Cash in banks 23,518,116  16,953,116  22,303,143
  Accretion of interest on 
   financial assets (Note 15) 24,092,552  14,417,480  27,794,598
  Loan and advances 33,088,018  7,333,136  13,533,003
     P208,464,081  P142,988,980  P135,490,812
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     2008  2007  2006
 Interest expense:   
  Accretion of interest on 
   financial liabilities (Notes 10 and 18) P1,411,233  P30,927,819  P54,648,804
  Long-term loans 103,669,187  24,491,469  4,977,009
  Short-term loans –  50,000  20,781,701
     P105,080,420  P55,469,288  P80,407,514

24. Income Tax

The Jollibee Group’s provision for current income tax consists of the following:
 
     2008  2007
 Regular income tax P344,359,514  P450,068,940
 Final tax withheld on royalty and interest income 485,296,600  403,307,393
     P829,656,114  P853,376,333
 
The components of the Jollibee Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities follow:
 
     2008  2007
 Deferred tax assets:    
  Operating lease payable  P337,807,069  P353,129,197
  Accrued retirement and other benefits 162,797,707  154,648,221
  MCIT 73,596,216  33,549,526
  Provision for impairment in value of property,
   plant and equipment, investment properties,
   and other non-financial assets 56,916,096  46,014,199
  NOLCO  29,565,610  88,420,281
  Allowance for inventory losses 16,788,061  8,488,671
  Allowance for impairment losses 13,979,836  16,776,321
  Provisions for legal claims and restructuring costs 9,593,198  19,405,647
  Unamortized past service costs 6,356,627  3,912,692
  Others 52,723,998  149,822,117
     P760,124,418  P874,166,872
 
 Deferred tax liabilities:    
  Operating lease receivable P45,845,271  P47,063,623
  Income from Meralco refund 5,671,553  10,514,094
  Excess of fair value over book value 
   of property, plant and equipment
   of acquired businesses –  837,205
  Others 20,853,274  68,405,670
     P72,370,098  P126,820,592

As of December 31, 2008, NOLCO and MCIT of the Philippine-based entities that can be claimed as 
deductions from taxable income and income tax due, respectively, are as follows:
 
     Carry Forward
 Year Incurred/Paid  Benefit Up to  NOLCO  MCIT
 December 31, 2008 December 31, 2011  P–  P40,046,689
 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2010  –  4,905,086
 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2009  189,742,363  28,644,441
 December 31, 2005 December 31, 2008  49,921,668  17,002,487
       239,664,031  90,598,703
 Less:      
  Applied against regular taxable income in 2008   141,111,998  –
  Expired in 2008   –  17,002,487
 Balance at year end   P98,552,033  P73,596,216

 
As of December 31, 2008, the following tax losses represent Belmont’s tax losses available for offset 
against future taxable income.  Belmont operates in the PRC where the income tax rate is 33%.

 Year Incurred/Paid Carry Forward Benefit Up to Tax Losses
 December 31, 2008 December 31, 2013 84,769,818
 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2012 34,892,190
 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2011 15,420,379
 December 31, 2005 December 31, 2010 6,400,222
 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2009 7,737,296
      P149,219,905
 Less expired in 2008  2,312,569
 Balance at year end  P146,907,336

The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at the statutory income tax rates to provision 
for income tax as shown in the consolidated statements of income follows:
 
     2008  2007  2006
 Provision for income tax at statutory P1,123,872,818  P1,097,255,056  P1,016,033,954
 Income tax effects of:      
  Effect of different tax rate for 
   royalty fees and interest (371,579,442 ) (333,250,076 ) (298,888,559 )
  Incentives availed by Zenith 
   (Note 25) –  (105,910,147 ) (83,704,389 )
  Effects of changes in tax rates  46,286,375  29,096,536  22,502,898
  Nondeductible expenses  40,828,955  31,366,946  18,596,686
  Expired/applied NOLCO and MCIT –  13,272,704  2,193,039
  Others  49,839,368  14,825,778  66,062,603
     P889,248,074  P746,656,797  P742,796,232
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Notes to Financial Statements
The deferred income taxes and the provision for current income tax include the effect of the change in 
tax rates.  Under Republic Act No. 9337, regular corporate income tax rate for domestic corporations 
and resident and nonresident foreign corporations is increased to 35% (from 32%) beginning 
November 1, 2005 and the rate will be reduced to 30% beginning January 1, 2009.  

25. Registration with the Board of Investments (BOI) 

Zenith, a wholly owned subsidiary, is registered with the BOI as a domestic producer of processed food 
on a non-pioneer status in accordance with the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.  
Under the terms of its registration, the subsidiary is entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives, 
including among others, income tax holiday (ITH) for a four-year period on processed food from March 
2003 or actual start of commercial operations, whichever is earlier; exemption from wharfage dues 
and any export tax, duty, import and fees for a ten-year period; employment of foreign nationals 
in supervisory, technical or advisory positions for a five-year period; importation of consigned 
equipment for a ten-year period; and additional deduction from taxable income of 50% of the wages 
of corresponding to the investment in number of direct labor in the year of availment.
 
Zenith’s registration with the BOI expired in November 2007.

Incentives availed of by the subsidiary amounted to P105.9 million and P83.7 million in 2007 and 
2006, respectively (see Note 24).
 
 

26. Retirement Benefits

Defined Benefit Plan
The Parent Company and certain Philippine-based subsidiaries have funded, independently 
administered, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans covering all permanent and regular 
employees with benefits based on years of service and latest compensation.  

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the 
consolidated statements of income and the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated 
balance sheets for the plans.

Net benefit expense:

     2008  2007  2006
 Current service cost P91,054,355  P111,560,548  P64,264,487
 Interest cost on benefit obligation 88,432,474  94,272,700  63,029,401
 Expected return on plan assets (34,803,756 ) (43,777,679 ) (29,272,369 )
 Net actuarial loss  1,008,909  18,763,314  269,400
 Effect of consolidation of Baker Fresh 
  (Note 10) –  –  (1,168,575 )
     P145,691,982  P180,818,883  P97,122,344

Accrued benefit cost:

     2008  2007
 Present value of defined benefit obligation P985,573,966  P896,922,683
 Fair value of plan assets (531,760,226 ) 433,325,653
 Present value of unfunded obligation 453,813,740  463,597,030
 Unrecognized net actuarial losses (53,286,762 ) (19,983,964 )
     P400,526,978  P443,613,066

The movements in the present value of benefit obligation are as follows:

     2008  2007
 At January 1 P896,922,683  P1,208,554,155
 Current service cost 91,054,355  111,560,548
 Interest cost on benefit obligation 88,432,474  94,272,700
 Actual benefits paid (90,835,546 ) (70,412,849 )
 Actuarial loss on benefit obligation  –  (447,051,871 )
 At December 31 P985,573,966  P896,922,683
 
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

     2008  2007
 At January 1 P433,325,653  P430,319,438
 Contributions 155,752,809  6,621,695
 Expected return on plan assets 34,803,756  43,777,679
 Actual benefits paid (57,810,284 ) (4,920,700 )
 Benefits payable to Parent Company 
  and Jollibee Worldwide Services (reimbursement) –  (44,683,589 )
 Actuarial gain (loss) on plan assets (34,311,708 ) 2,211,130
 At December 31 P531,760,226  P433,325,653
 
 Actual return on plan assets P492,048  P41,490,051

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

     2008 2007
 Government securities 39.04% 26.94%
 Special savings deposits 30.79  5.19
 Investments in shares of stock 22.99  32.80
 Investments in debt securities 4.26                                  –
 Loans/notes receivable 1.88  2.28
 Cash and cash equivalents  –  30.69
 Other receivables 1.04  2.10
     100.00% 100.00%
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The Jollibee Group will contribute a substantial part of the unfunded defined benefit obligation in 2009.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices, prevailing 
on that date, applicable to the period within which the obligation is to be settled.  The latest actuarial 
valuation of the defined benefit retirement plan is as of December 31, 2007.  

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the principal actuarial assumptions used to determine retirement 
benefits obligations follow:

     2008 2007
 Discount rate  10.15% 10.15%
 Salary increase rate  8.00% 8.00%
 Rate of return on plan assets  8.00% 8.00%

 
The amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows:

     2008  2007  2006
 Defined benefit obligation P985,573,966  P896,922,683  P1,208,554,155
 Plan assets 531,760,226  433,325,653  430,319,438
 Deficit  P453,813,740  P463,597,030  P778,234,717
 
 Experience adjustments on:   
  Plan obligation P–  (P220,551,925 ) P28,704,737
  Plan assets (34,311,708 ) 2,211,130  103,583,944

Defined Contribution Plan
The employees of the PRC-domiciled subsidiaries of the Jollibee Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the local governments.  These subsidiaries are 
required to contribute a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme 
to fund the benefits.  The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the retirement benefit 
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The contributions made to the scheme and recognized as retirement expense amounted to  
P2.93 million, P1.94 million and P57.3 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

27. Stock Option Plans

Tandem Stock Purchase and Option Plans
On January 1, 2002, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s Stock Purchase and Option Plan II 
(Plan II).  Under Plan II, the number of shares an eligible participant can purchase shall be based on 
the particular tranche to which such eligible participant belongs, to be determined in accordance 
with the formula provided for in Plan II.  The exercise price per share shall not be less than 50% to 

75% of the fair market value at the time of the commencement of the tranche, as computed by the 
Compensation Committee.  There are three tranches available for the option exercise.  The options 
vest and become exercisable after three years of continuous employment provided the employee is 
still employed by the Jollibee Group and a joint venture at the exercise date.  In addition, an eligible 
participant has the option to purchase a maximum of two shares for every fully paid share under an 
accepted purchase offer.

A total of 12,651,052 shares have been subscribed and fully paid by December 31, 2004 by the 
employee participants under the Purchase portion of Plan II.  As discussed in Note 19, the Parent 
Company’s BOD has approved the use of the treasury shares to cover the stock purchase exercised.  
The excess of the cost of the treasury shares issued over the purchase exercise price amounting 
to P24.8 million was deducted against additional paid-in capital resulting from treasury share 
transactions.
 
In accordance with Plan II, a total of 25,426,904 shares became available for the Option portion 
equivalent to two shares for every fully paid share under the Purchase portion.  The options become 
exercisable as these become vested provided the employee is still employed by the Jollibee Group.  
One-third of the shares available for the Option portion will end its vesting period each year starting 
January 28, 2005 until January 30, 2007.  Thus, the maximum option shares exercisable each year from 
January 28, 2005 until January 30, 2007 is one-third of the shares available for the Option portion.  
The unexercised option shares will expire on January 30, 2008.

The movements in the number of stock option for Plan II in 2008 and 2007 follow:
 
 Number of Shares
     2008  2007
 Balance at beginning of year 6,072,004  13,469,891
 Options exercised during the year (4,389,786 ) (7,394,604 )
 Options of resigned employees –  (3,283 )
 Forfeited shares (1,682,218 ) –
     –  6,072,004

As of December 31, 2008, a total of 1,682,218 option shares were not exercised, consequently, 
forfeited.  The number of option shares exercisable as of December 31, 2007 is 6,072,004.  The option 
shares available are divided into three tranches.  Tranche 1 has an exercise price of P10.00 a share, 
P12.00 a share for Tranche 2 and P15.75 a share for Tranche 3.  The options that were exercised in 
2008 and 2007 are as follows: 
 
     Tranche 1  Tranche 2  Tranche 3  Total
 2008  4,184,358  155,291  50,137  4,389,786
 2007  5,679,315  1,480,248  235,041  7,394,604

The weighted average share price of options exercised was P10.14.
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Notes to Financial Statements
The fair value of share options as at the date of grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes Option 
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.  
The option style used for this plan is the European style since the exercise is on a fixed maturity date.  
The inputs to the model used for the option granted on January 1, 2002 are shown below.  Tranche 
1 is disregarded from the computation since Tranche 1 was issued before November 7, 2002 and has 
already vested as of January 28, 2005.  The Jollibee Group has availed of the allowed exemption on 
the application of PFRS 2 for Tranche 1.
 
     Tranche 2  Tranche 3
 Dividend yield 1.3%  1.3%
 Expected volatility 40.2%  40.2%
 Risk-free interest rate 5.5%  5.9%
 Expected life of the option 2-4 years  1-3 years

 The expected life of the option is based on management’s best estimate at the date of the grant and 
is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.  The expected volatility reflects the 
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily 
be the actual outcome.  No other features of the option grant were incorporated in the measurement 
of fair value.

Senior Management Stock Option and Incentive Plan
On December 17, 2002, the SEC approved the exemption requested by the Parent Company on the 
registration requirements of the 101,500,000 options underlying the Parent Company’s common 
shares to be issued pursuant to the Jollibee Group’s Senior Management Stock Option and Incentive 
Plan (the Plan).  The Plan covers selected key members of management of the Parent Company, 
certain subsidiaries and designated affiliated entities.

The Plan is divided into two programs, namely, the Management Stock Option Program (MSOP) 
and the Executive Long-term Incentive Program (ELTIP).  The MSOP provides a yearly stock option 
grant program based on the Jollibee Group and individual performance while the ELTIP provides 
stock ownership as an incentive to reinforce entrepreneurial and long-term ownership behavior of 
participants.

The MSOP is a yearly stock option grant program.  Each option cycle refers to the period commencing 
on the MSOP grant date and ending on the last day of the MSOP exercise period.  On July 1, 2004, the 
Compensation Committee of the Parent Company granted 2,385,000 options under the 1st MSOP cycle 
to eligible participants.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options granted on each 
anniversary of the MSOP grant date.  Vested MSOP may be exercised starting July 1, 2006 and will expire 
on June 30, 2013.  On July 1, 2005 and 2006, 2,577,000 and 2,556,000 options under the 2nd MSOP 
cycle and 3rd MSOP cycle were granted to eligible participant.  On July 1, 2007, 3,014,700 options under 
the 4th MSOP cycle were granted to eligible participants.  Likewise, an additional 675,500 options under 
the 3rd MSOP cycle were granted.  The options vest similar to the 1st MSOP cycle.

The movements in 2008 and 2007 in the number of stock options outstanding for the 1st, 2nd, 3rd 
and 4th MSOP cycles follow:
 

     1st MSOP   2nd MSOP   3rd MSOP   4th MSOP
     Cycle  Cycle  Cycle  Cycle  Total
Balance at 
 December 31, 2005 2,289,235  2,577,000  –  –  4,866,235
Options granted 
 during the year –  –  2,556,000  –  2,556,000
Options exercised 
 during the year (214,574 ) (143,769 ) –  –  (358,343 )
Balance at 
 December 31, 2006 2,074,661  2,433,231  2,556,000  –  7,063,892
Option exercised 
 during the year (299,032 ) (362,504 ) (286,145 ) –  (947,681 )
Balance at 
 December 31, 2007 1,775,629  2,070,727  2,269,855  –  6,116,211
Options exercised 
 during the year (130,765 ) (268,330 ) (255,418 ) –  (654,513 )
Options granted 
 during the year –  –  675,500  3,014,700  3,690,200
Balance at 
 December 31, 2008 1,644,864  1,802,397  2,689,937  3,014,700  9,151,898

The weighted average share price of options exercised was P27.86.
 
The fair value as at the date of grant of the share options under MSOP is estimated using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options 
were granted.

The option style used for this plan is the American style because this option plan allows exercise 
before the maturity date.  The inputs to the model used for the option granted on July 1, 2004 for 1st 
MSOP cycle, July 1, 2005 for 2nd MSOP cycle, July 1, 2006 for 3rd MSOP cycle and July 1, 2007 for 4th 
MSOP cycle are shown below:
 
     1st MSOP   2nd MSOP   3rd MSOP   4th MSOP
     Cycle  Cycle  Cycle  Cycle
 Dividend yield 1.7%  1.7%  1.7%  1.7%
 Expected volatility 36.9%  36.9%  36.9%  30.4%
 Risk-free interest rate 6.2%  6.0%  6.2%  3.8%
 Expected life of the option 5-7 years  5-7 years  5-7 years  5-7 years
 Stock price on grant date P24.00  P29.00  P35.00  P52.50
 Exercise price P20.00  P27.50  P32.32  P50.77

On July 1, 2007, the Compensation Committee of the Parent Company granted 22,750,000 options 
under ELTIP to eligible participants.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options 
granted on each anniversary of the ELTIP grant date.  Vested ELTIP may be exercised starting July 1, 
2007 and will expire on June 30, 2012.Jo
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The movements in 2008 in the number of outstanding stock options follow:
 
 Options granted in 2007   22,750,000
 Options exercised in 2007   (1,479,168 )
 Balance at December 31, 2007   21,270,832
 Options exercised in 2008   (3,500,001 )
 Balance at December 31, 2008   17,770,831

The fair value as at the date of grant of the share options under ELTIP is estimated using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options 
were granted.

The option style used for this plan is the American style because this option plan allows exercise 
before the maturity date.  The inputs to the model used for the option granted on July 1, 2007 are 
shown below:
 
 Dividend yield   1.7%
 Expected volatility   36.9%
 Risk-free interest rate   6.2%
 Expected life of the option   5 years
 Stock price on grant date   P24.00
 Exercise price   P20.00
 
The cost of the stock options charged to operations under “General and administrative expenses - 
personnel costs” account amounted to P85.6 million, P85.9 million and P40.0 million in 2008, 2007 
and 2006, respectively (see Note 22).
 
 

28. Related Party Transactions

The Jollibee Group has transactions within and among the consolidated entities and.  PAS 24, Related 
Party Disclosures, defines a related party as an entity that has the ability to control the other party 
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  
Transactions between members of the Jollibee Group and the related balances are eliminated in the 
consolidation and are no longer included in the disclosures.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Jollibee Group
The aggregate compensation and benefits to key management personnel of the Jollibee Group for the 
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

     2008  2007  2006
 Salaries and short-term benefits P372,814,600  P295,501,721  P220,798,970
 Retirement expense from
  defined benefit plan 22,636,807  33,765,090  13,246,147
 
 (forward)

     2008  2007  2006
 Employee car plan and other 
  long-term benefits P24,509,655  P14,033,389  P12,092,466
 Stock options expense 85,654,300  84,895,128  32,008,199
     P505,615,362  P428,195,328  P278,145,782

29. Earnings Per Share Computation

Basic and diluted EPS are computed as follows:
 
     2008  2007  2006
 (a) Net income attributable to the
    equity holders of the Parent P2,319,087,864  P2,386,722,219  P2,156,618,463
 (b) Weighted average number 
    of shares - basic  1,022,431,961  1,009,526,325  997,857,977
   Weighted average number of 
    shares exercisable under 
    the stock option plan 15,250,887  14,985,242  6,763,355
   Weighted average number of 
    shares that would have been 
    purchased at fair market 
    value (8,551,814 ) (5,113,222 ) (2,593,210 )
 (c) Adjusted weighted average 
    shares - diluted 1,029,131,034  1,019,398,345  1,002,028,122
 
 Earnings per share:      
  Basic (a/b) P2.268  P2.364  P2.161
  Diluted (a/c) 2.253  2.341  2.152

 
30. Commitments and Contingencies

a. Operating lease commitments - Jollibee Group as lessee
 
 The Jollibee Group has various operating lease commitments for QSR outlets and offices.  The 

noncancellable periods of the leases range from 3 to 20 years, mostly containing renewal options.  
Some of the leases contain escalation clauses.  The lease contracts on certain sales outlets provide 
for the payment of additional rentals based on certain percentages of sales of the outlets.  Rental 
payments in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounted to P2,723.7 million, 
P2,391.0 million and P2,137.2 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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 The future minimum rentals payable for the noncancellable periods of the operating leases follow:
 
     2008  2007
 Within one year P848,088,729  P638,552,582
 After one year but not more than five years 3,706,473,909  2,942,218,031
 More than five years 3,082,036,952  2,861,963,964
     P7,636,599,590  P6,442,734,577

 PAS 17 requires the recognition of rental expense for the noncancellable portion of the operating 
leases on a straight-line basis.  The amounts by which rental expense recognized under the 
straight-line method exceeded the rental amounts due in accordance with the terms of the lease 
agreements are charged to “Operating lease payable” account.  Rent expense recognized on a 
straight-line basis amounted to P2,723.7 million, P2,391.0 million and P2,137.2 million in 2008, 
2007 and 2006, respectively.

b. Operating lease commitments - Jollibee Group as lessor

 The Jollibee Group entered into commercial property leases for its investment property units.  
Noncancellable periods of the lease range from 3 to 20 years, mostly containing renewal options.  
All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charges on an annual basis 
based on prevailing market conditions.  Rental income in accordance with the terms of the lease 
agreements amounted to P89.8 million, P101.6 million and P38.7 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively.

 The future minimum rentals receivable for the noncancellable portions of the operating leases 
follow:

     2008  2007
 Within one year P51,911,745  P30,203,165
 After one year but not more than five years 102,659,383  71,791,612
 More than five years 47,236,932  29,583,522
     P201,808,060  P131,578,299

 PAS 17 requires the recognition of rental income for the noncancellable portion of the operating 
leases on a straight-line basis.  The amounts by which rental income recognized under the straight-
line method exceeded the rental amounts receivable in accordance with the terms of the lease 
agreements are included under “Operating lease receivable” account.  Rental income recognized on 
a straight-line basis amounted to P83.0 million, P96.3 million and P88.1 million in 2008, 2007 and 
2006, respectively.

c. Contingencies
 
 The Jollibee Group is involved in litigations, claims and disputes which are normal to its business.  

Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, with respect to these litigations, claims and 
disputes will not materially affect the financial position and results of operations of the Jollibee Group.

31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Jollibee Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and 
investing activities.  The Jollibee Group’s risk management policies focus on actively securing the Jollibee 
Group’s short-term to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.  The 
Jollibee Group does not actively engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

The Jollibee Group’s principal instruments are cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and 
long term debt.  The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise financing for the Jollibee 
Group’s operations.  The Jollibee Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as 
receivables, employee car plan, refundable deposits, receivable from Meralco, AFS financial assets and 
trade payable and other current liabilities.

The main risks arising from the Jollibee Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit 
risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.  The Jollibee Group’s BOD and management review and agree 
on the policies for managing each of these risks as summarized below.  

Foreign Currency Risk
The Jollibee Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises as the Parent Company has investments 
outside of the Philippines, which are mainly in the PRC and in the USA.  While the foreign business 
has been rapidly growing, the net assets of foreign business accounts for only 10.7% and 15.5% of 
the consolidated net assets of the Jollibee Group as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  
Therefore, the total exposure to foreign exchange risk of the Jollibee Group is still not significant.

The Jollibee Group also has transactional foreign currency exposures.  Such exposure arises from cash 
in banks, short-term deposits and receivables in foreign currencies.

To manage its foreign exchange risk, the Jollibee Group normally buys forward foreign currency 
contracts representing 50% of its payables in foreign currency arising mainly from importation of raw 
materials and equipment.  Thus, the movements in foreign exchange rates basically have minimal 
impact on its short-term transactions.  The Jollibee Group did not engage in any forward currency 
contracts in 2008 and 2007.
 
The following table shows the Jollibee Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and 
liabilities and their peso equivalents:

 December 31, 2008
 Philippine Operations Foreign Operations
     USD  RMB  PHP  RMB  USD  PHP
Assets      
Cash and cash 
 equivalents 11,373,730  –  540,479,650  113,757,148  9,855,203  1,256,656,272
Receivables 4,250,152  –  201,967,223  18,097,816  2,918,847  264,121,463
     15,623,882  –  742,446,873  131,854,964  12,774,050  1,520,777,735

(forward)

Notes to Financial Statements
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 December 31, 2008
 Philippine Operations Foreign Operations
     USD  RMB  PHP  RMB  USD  PHP
Liabilities      
Payables  –  (350,000,000 ) (2,425,500,000 ) (109,151,414 ) (10,063,669 ) (1,234,644,833 )
Loans   –  –  –  (58,728,100 ) (2,504,796 ) (526,013,651 )
     15,623,882  (350,000,000 ) (1,683,053,127 ) (36,024,550 ) 205,585  (239,880,749 )

 December 31, 2007
 Philippine Operations Foreign Operations
     USD  PHP  RMB  USD  PHP
Assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 2,300,079  94,947,272  33,710,323  4,845,537  390,750,027
Receivables  2,612,794  107,856,151  8,538,092  1,636,702  115,869,893
     4,912,873  202,803,423  42,248,415  6,482,239  506,619,920
Less payables (65,262 ) (2,693,997 ) (97,272,932 ) (21,982,230 ) (1,457,780,976 )
     4,847,611  200,109,426  (55,024,517 ) (15,499,991 ) (951,161,056 )

The Jollibee Group has recognized in its consolidated statements of income, foreign exchange gain 
included under “Other income” account in the consolidated statements of income of P71.6 million, 
P25.0 million and P12.7 million on its net foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities for the 
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  This resulted from the movements of 
the Philippine peso against the US dollar as shown in the following table:

      Peso to
     RMB  US Dollar
 December 31, 2008 6.93  47.52
 December 31, 2007 5.66  41.28

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US dollar to 
Philippine peso exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Jollibee Group’s income 
before income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities):

  December 31, 2008
  Increase (Decrease) in P to  Effect on Income Before Income Tax
 USD 
  P1.50  P23,435,823
  (1.50 ) (23,435,823 )
  1.00  15,623,882
  (1.00 ) (15,623,882 )
 RMB 
  P0.95  (P332,500,000 )
  (0.95 ) 332,500,000
  0.63  (220,500,000 )
  (0.63 ) 220,500,000
 

  December 31, 2007
  Increase (Decrease) in P to  Effect on Income Before Income Tax
 USD P1.50  P7,271,417
  (1.50 ) (7,271,417 )
  1.00  4,847,611
  (1.00 ) (4,847,611 )

The impact on the Jollibee Group’s consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity already 
excludes the impact on the transactions affecting the consolidated statements of income.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty fails to fulfill its contractual obligations to the 
Jollibee Group.  This includes risk of non-payment by borrowers and issuers, failed settlement of 
transactions and default on outstanding contracts.

The Jollibee Group has a very strict credit policy.  Its credit transactions are only with franchisees that 
have gone through rigorous screening before granting them the franchise.  The credit terms are very 
short, deposits and advance payments are also required before rendering the service or delivering the 
goods, thus, mitigating the possibility of non-collection.  In cases of defaults of debtors, the exposure 
is contained as transactions that will increase the exposure of the Jollibee Group are not permitted.  
Significant credit transactions are only with related parties.

Credit Quality.  The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets, based on the 
Jollibee Group’s credit rating system.

 December 31, 2008
 Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due or
     Total  A  B  C  Impaired
 (In Millions)
Cash and cash equivalents P6,858.8  P6,858.8  P–  P–  P–
Short-term investments 20.0  20.0  –  –  –
Trade   1,882.2  588.0  287.0  27.0  980.2
Advances to officers and 
 employees 73.5  73.5  –  –  –
Current portion of:     
 Employee car plan 44.3  44.3  –  –  –
 Receivable from Meralco 10.1  10.1  –  –  –
 Others  7.6  7.6  –  –  –
Receivables 2,017.7  723.5  287.0  27.0  980.2
Noncurrent portion of:     
 Refundable deposits 648.9  648.9  –  –  –
 Employee car plan 74.5  74.5  –  –  –
 Receivable from Meralco 8.8  8.8  –  –  –
Other noncurrent assets 732.2  732.2  –  –  –
     P9,628.7  P8,334.5  P287.0  P27.0  P980.2
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 December 31, 2007
   Neither 
   Past Due nor  Past Due but not Impaired (Age in Days)
  Total   Impaired 1-30 31-60 61-120 Over 120 Impaired
 (In Millions)
Trade P1,901.0 P1,069.0 P253.7 P109.3 P188.2 P198.2 P82.6
Advances to officers and employees 66.9 66.9 – – – – –
Current portion of:       
 Employee car plan 36.9 36.9 – – – – –
 Receivable from Meralco 11.0 11.0 – – – – –
 Others 9.3 9.3 – – – – –
Total P2,025.1 P1,193.1 P253.7 P109.3 P188.2 P198.2 P82.6

Credit Risk Exposure and Concentration.  The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk 
of the Jollibee Group per business segment as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, without considering 
the effects of collaterals and other credit risk mitigation techniques.

     2008  2007
 Cash and cash equivalents (exclude cash on hand) P6,804,429,400  P5,562,133,723
 Short-term investments 20,002,018  –
 Receivables  1,940,700,399  1,942,450,718
 Other noncurrent assets - Noncurrent portion of:  
   Refundable deposits 648,899,059  504,555,973
   Employee car plan 74,464,709  70,993,342
   Receivable from Meralco 8,769,643  17,134,633
     P9,497,265,228  P8,097,268,389

The Jollibee Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum 
exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The Jollibee Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with counterparty since it has 
short credit terms to franchisees, which it implements consistently.  In addition, the Jollibee Group’s 
franchisee profile is such that no single franchisee accounts for more than 5% of the total systemwide 
sales of the Jollibee Group.

With respect to credit risk arising from financial assets of Jollibee Group, which comprise cash and 
cash equivalents, short-term investments and AFS financial assets, the Jollibee Group’s exposure to 
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying 
amount of these instruments.
 
Interest Rate Risk
The Jollibee Group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the long-term 
debt obligations of the Parent Company and Red Ribbon, with fixed interest rates.  Thus, the changes 
in interest rates will have no impact on the Jollibee Group’s consolidated statements of income.

The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Jollibee Group’s financial 
instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk:

 December 31, 2007
 Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due or
     Total  A  B  C  Impaired
 (In Millions)
Cash and cash equivalents P5,576.9  P5,576.9  P–  P–  P–
Trade   1,901.0  940.2  118.1  10.7  832.0
Advances to officers 
 and employees 66.9  66.9  –  –  –
Current portion of:     
 Employee car plan 36.9  36.9  –  –  –
 Receivable from Meralco 11.0  11.0  –  –  –
 Others  9.3  9.3  –  –  –
Receivables 2,025.1  1,064.3  118.1  10.7  832.0
Noncurrent portion of:     
 Refundable deposits 504.6  504.6  –  –  –
 Employee car plan 71.0  71.0  –  –  –
 Receivable from Meralco 17.1  17.1  –  –  –
Other noncurrent assets 592.7  592.7  –  –  –
     P8,194.7  P7,233.9  P118.1  P10.7  P832.0

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Jollibee Group using internal credit ratings, as 
shown below:

A - For counterparty who is not expected by the Jollibee Group to default in settling its obligations, 
thus, credit risk exposure is minimal.  This counterparty normally includes banks, related parties and 
customers who pay on or before due date.

B - For counterparty with tolerable delays (normally from 1 to 30 days) in settling its obligations to the 
Jollibee Group.  The delays may be due to cut-off differences and/or clarifications on contracts/
billings.

C - For counterparty who consistently defaults in settling its obligation and may be or actually referred 
to legal and/or subjected to cash before delivery (CBD) scheme.  Under this scheme, the customer’s 
credit line is suspended and all subsequent orders are paid in cash before delivery.  The CBD status 
will only be lifted upon full settlement of the receivables and approval of management.  Thereafter, 
the regular credit term and normal billing and collection processes will resume.

The aging analyses of receivables are as follows:

 December 31, 2008
   Neither 
   Past Due nor  Past Due but not Impaired (Age in Days)
  Total   Impaired 1-30 31-60 61-120 Over 120 Impaired
 (In Millions)
Trade P1,882.2 P902.0 P204.4 P68.7 P77.0 P553.0 P77.1
Advances to officers and employees 73.5 73.5 – – – – –
Current portion of:       
 Employee car plan 44.3 44.3 – – – – –
 Receivable from Meralco 10.1 10.1 – – – – –
 Others 7.6 7.6 – – – – –
Total  P2,017.7 P1,037.5 P204.4 P68.7 P77.0 P553.0 P77.1

Notes to Financial Statements
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 December 31, 2008
     Fixed Interest Rate  Within 1 year  2-3 years  4-5 years  Total
US dollar-denominated:     
 Loan 3  6.50%  P23,629,082  P23,496,596  P–  P47,125,678
 Loan 4  6.50%  20,750,179  41,500,309  22,479,336  84,729,824
CNY-denominated -      
 Loan 5  6.85%  166,355,973  2,761,209,319  –  2,927,565,292
       P210,735,234  P2,826,206,224  P22,479,336  P3,059,420,794

 December 31, 2007 
     Fixed Interest Rate  Within 1 year  2-3 years  4-5 years  Total
Peso-denominated:     
 Loan 1  9% and 11.75%  P8,181,819  P–  P–  P8,181,819
 Loan 2  9.75%  2,727,270  –  –  2,727,270
US dollar-denominated:     
 Loan 4  6.50%  17,362,908  38,365,092  –  55,728,000
 Loan 5  6.50%  12,277,922  29,460,501  35,032,715  76,771,138
       P40,549,919  P67,825,593  P35,032,715  P143,408,227

Liquidity Risk
Jollibee Group’s exposure to liquidity risk refers to the risk that its financial liabilities are not serviced 
in a timely manner and that its working capital requirements and planned capital expenditures are 
not met.  To manage this exposure and to ensure sufficient liquidity levels, the Jollibee Group closely 
monitors its cash flows to be able to finance its capital expenditures and to pay its obligations, as and 
when they fall due.  

On a weekly basis, the Jollibee Group’s Cash and Banking Team monitors its collections, expenditures 
and any excess/deficiency in the working capital requirements, by preparing cash position reports that 
present actual and projected cash flows for the subsequent week.  Cash outflows resulting from major 
expenditures are planned so that money market placements are available in time with the planned 
major expenditure.  In addition, the Jollibee Group has short-term cash deposits and has available 
credit lines with accredited banking institutions, in case there is a sudden deficiency.  The Jollibee 
Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed sufficient to finance the operations.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 
2008 and 2007.
 
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Jollibee Group’s financial liabilities based on 
the contractual undiscounted payments:

 December 31, 2008
     On demand  Within 1 year  2-3 years  4-5 years  Total
Trade payables and 
 other current liabilities* P7,394,861,649  P559,722,919  P5,137,910  P–  P7,959,722,478
Long-term debt (including 
 current portion) –  210,735,234  2,826,206,224  22,479,336  3,059,420,794
     P7,394,861,649  P770,458,153  P2,831,344,134  P22,479,336  P11,019,143,272
*Excluding output VAT, local and other taxes and other liabilities to government agencies.

 December 31, 2007
     On demand  Within 1 year  2-3 years  4-5 years  Total
Trade payables and 
 other current liabilities* P739,489,465  P5,796,449,584  P–  P–  P6,535,939,049
Long-term debt (including 
 current portion) –  49,697,910  77,103,321  37,552,891  164,354,122
     P739,489,465  P5,846,147,494  P77,103,321  P37,552,891  P6,700,293,171
*Excluding output VAT, local and other taxes and other liabilities to government agencies.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Jollibee Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains 
a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize 
shareholder value. The Jollibee Group has sufficient capitalization.

The Jollibee Group generates cash flows from operations sufficient to finance its organic growth.  It 
declares cash dividends representing about 1/3 of its consolidated net income, a ratio that would still 
leave some additional cash for future acquisitions.  If needed, the Jollibee Group would borrow money 
for acquisitions of new businesses.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Jollibee Group’s ratio of debt to equity and ratio of net debt to 
total equity are as follows:

Debt to equity

     2008  2007
 Total debt (a) P12,985,869,085  P9,296,664,505
 Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 14,136,494,022  12,642,928,847
 Total interest-bearing debt and equity attributable
  to equity holders of the Parent (b) P27,122,363,107  P21,939,593,352

 Debt to equity ratio (a/b) 48%  42%

 Net debt to equity

     2008  2007
 Total debt P12,985,869,085  P9,296,664,505
 Less cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits 6,878,851,074  5,575,943,093
 Net debt (a) 6,107,018,011  3,720,721,412
 Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 14,136,494,022  12,642,928,847
 Total net debt and equity attributable 
  to equity holders of the Parent (b) P20,243,512,033  P16,363,650,259
 
 Net debt to equity ratio (a/b) 30%  23%
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32. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following table sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of financial assets and 
liabilities, by category and by class, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.  There are no material 
unrecognized financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008.

 2008 2007
     Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets    
Loans and Receivables:    
 Cash and cash equivalents P6,858,849,056 P6,858,849,056 P5,575,943,093 P5,575,943,093
 Short-term investments 20,002,018 20,002,018 – –
 Receivables 1,940,700,399 1,940,700,399 1,942,450,718 1,942,450,718
 Other noncurrent assets –    
  Noncurrent portion of:     
   Refundable deposits 648,899,059 656,566,215 504,555,973 512,967,595
   Employee car plan 74,464,709 76,796,313 70,993,342 72,384,757
   Receivable from Meralco  8,769,643 9,082,735 17,134,633 18,992,548
     9,551,684,884 9,561,996,736 8,111,077,759 8,122,738,711
AFS financial assets:    
 Shares of stock 28,290,714 28,290,714 39,554,343 39,554,343
 Club shares 6,600,000 6,600,000 6,610,000 6,610,000
     34,890,714 34,890,714 46,164,343 46,164,343
     P9,586,575,598 P9,596,887,450 P8,157,242,102 P8,168,903,054

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade payables and other 
 current liabilities* P3,590,914,485 P3,590,914,485 P6,535,939,049 P6,535,939,049
Long-term debt (including 
 current portion) 2,508,999,532 2,071,450,886 143,408,227 128,684,746
     P6,099,914,017 P5,662,365,371 P6,679,347,276 P6,664,623,795
*Excluding output VAT, local and other taxes and other liabilities to government agencies.

Financial instruments whose carrying amounts approximate fair value.  Management has determined 
that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables and trade 
payables and other current liabilities reasonably approximate their fair values because of their short-
term maturities.
 

Financial instruments carried at other than fair value.  Management has determined that the 
estimated fair value of refundable deposits, employee car plan, receivable from Meralco, and long- 
term debt are based on the discounted value of future cash flows using applicable rates, as follows:

     2008  2007
 Receivable from Meralco 7%-8%  7%-8%
 Employee car plan 5%-8%  4%-6%
 Refundable deposits 7%-8%  5%-8%
 Long term debt 6%-7%  5%-6%

AFS financial assets.  The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial 
markets are determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at balance 
sheet date.

Bifurcated Embedded Currency Forward
The Jollibee Group’s derivative relates to the embedded currency forward or a foreign exchange 
adjustment provision in its acquisition of Red Ribbon (see Note 10) on the balance purchase price 
amounting to P0.5 billion.  These currency forwards have various maturity dates up to October 27, 
2008 but the Parent Company opted to early settle the liability on September 27, 2007.  The fair value 
of the embedded derivative amounted to P86.6 million and P65.2 million as of September 27, 2007 
and December 31, 2006, respectively.  Mark-to-market gain on embedded derivative, recognized 
under “Other income” account in the consolidated statements of income, amounted to P21.4 million 
in 2007.

33. Events After Balance Sheet Date

Dividend Declaration
The BOD of the Parent Company approved on April 28, 2009 a cash dividend of P0.37 a share of 
common stock to all stockholders of record as of May 14, 2009.  This will be distributed on June 5, 
2009.  This cash dividend is 2.8% higher than that declared in the same period last year.

Acquisition of a Business
On January 1, 2009, Jollibee Worldwide, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 70% of 
the issued and outstanding shares of Lao Dong Pte. Ltd. based in Taipei, Republic of China for a total 
acquisition cost of New Taiwan dollar (NT)42 million (P61.1 million) and additional capital infusion of 
NT21 million (P30.6 million).

Notes to Financial Statements
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Investor Information
Company Headquarters

10/F Jollibee Plaza Bldg., #10 Emerald Avenue
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Philippines
Telephone: (632) 634-1111
Facsimile: (632) 633-9504
Website: www.jollibee.com.ph

Common Stock
Jollibee’s common stock is listed and traded on the Philippine Stock 
Exchange under the symbol “JFC.”  
It is one of the companies which comprise the PSE Composite Index.

Annual Stockholder’s Meeting
The 2009 Stockholders’ Meeting will be held on June 26, 2009 at 2:00 P.M., 
(registration starts at 1:00 P.M.) Friday at the Philippine Stock Exchange 
Center Auditorium, Ground Floor, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, 
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

Stockholder Inquiries
Inquiries regarding dividend payments, account status, address changes, 
stock certificates and other pertinent matters may be addressed to the 
Company’s registrar and transfer agent:

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
Stock Transfer Office
RCBC Plaza Tower 1
Senator Gil Puyat Avenue
corner Ayala Avenue, Makati City

SEC Form 17-A
The financial information in this report, in the opinion of Management, 
substantially conforms with the information required in the “17-A Report” 
submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission. Copies of this 
report may be obtained free of charge upon written request to the Office 
of the Corporate Secretary.

Produced  by Jollibee Foods Corporation
Design and Concept by OP Communications, Inc.
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